f Turn |n i

‘p"‘c m“

B

1
PROCESSED

APR 1 32007

THOMSON
FINANCIAL_)

|

—

HIIWIIHUIIV\||IHW“|\IIHI\|IPIIH|HIII

07050683

NAVTEQ

2006 ANNUAL REPORT




Changing the way travelers shop.
This advanced NAVTEQ service was launched in 2006 and !

marketed to retail chain management. It enables subscribing

companies to position each of their retail units on cur map.
Travelers use GPS-enabled navigation or Internet mopping sites
to route to those locations just when they need them the most—
when they're traveling ond about to make purchase decisions.

Keeping it fresh by giving retailers control.

NAVTEQ Direct Access™ is another example of how NAVTEQ

is helping to shape a new world, o new way of doing business.
Subscribers to the service control the placement of their locations
on our map. This means participating merchants can move,
delete, add, and change location information when changes I
ocecur in the real world, The result is continually updated
information which con be laken advantage of as devices with '

download capabilities launch.

It is a flexible, useful tool for our custemers. And yel another

powerful reason the world is turning to NAVTEQ.

The NAVTEQ Map Management System

Our future begins with the right technofogy.

During 2006, NAVTEQ completed the final stages of o redesién
of the system used to store, maintain, update, and deliver the
datobase that is at the core of our business. This redesign was
part of a forward-thinking initiative to provide our customers with
the maps and differentiated location-based content they would

need to compete in a rapidly evolving marketplace. !
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The environment for the next generation of content.
Innovative content has quickly emerged as one of the keys to
differentiating navigation-based applications. Our enhanced
Map Management System enables us to more rapidly and
efficiently introduce such content due fo its flexible dota model
and scalable structure.

Maintaining our high standards for

service and market leadership.

As part of the conversion, we have upgraded our proprietary
data collection software. Our new system automatically validates
data as it is entered, and enables multiple users to work on the

same geographic area at the same time, increasing productivity.

As device capacities and user requirements increase, our Map
Management System will be the foundation for more frequent

ond customized product release cycles.

NAVTEQ




Moving forward. With innovations.
We continue to develop new products andjservices,
that forr?‘n the foundation for a rapidly changing, interconnected
world of |'«/\.'ir*elea-“,ss devices and intelligent routing. We continue to
invest S|gn|f|oant resources in the technology behind our map.
Both willlhelp the company maintain its Ieader‘ship role as we help
drive tho industry’s ongoing expansion.

NAVTEQ Discover Cities™

An innovative ic‘leo for urban pedestrians.

Our Discover Cities product reflects our strong commitment to
the growing locdtion-based services indusiry, and to products
and services ’rho’ extend the location experience beyond the
vehicle. Lounche;d in mid-2006, Discover Cities delivers
targeted and ur:\ique data bundles—including information on
tourist affraclions, mass transit systems, pedestrian walkwoys,

shopping, ond restaurants—to urban pedestrians on the go.

NAVTEG reliability. Fodor's insight, A perfect match.

Discover Cities ollso reflects our commitment 1o forging
relationships that enable the creation of best-in-class products.

It integrates the NAVTEQ® map with data from one of the world's
most famous and detailed travel guides, Fodor's® Travel Guide.

NAVTEQ

innovations

A smart product for moving forward.

For developers and service providers, Discover Cities meets the
demand for rich, reliable, easy-to-use map and 'pedesfriun-
relevant dc:tcli For end users, it enables a brood range of
applications that enrich their lives. It's the right product for the

industry iodo‘;'r and for where it's heading.

NAVTEQ Direct Access™

.. ! .
Driving customers 1o retoil.

Today, retailers have taken the brond wars to the streets, buildin
new outlets at virtually every turn, trying to hit a moving targel—
the busy, ever-mobile consumer. At the same time, more and

more of those consumers are depending on NAVTEQ maps to

find shopping, food, lodging, and other Points of Interest {POls).

|
The NAVTEQ| Direct Access program meets the needs of both

groups, heod -on.
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Al NAVTEQ, our maps and locafion-based content are preferred by leading automotive and consumer

electronics manufacturers, and the top mapping Web sites. These leading companies see the potential
in the marketplace and they share our vision for the role navigation and location content will play in
the way we live and work in the future.

We believe our maps can become an essential component of every consumer’s daily life.

By confinually expanding our footprint of highly accurate maps and collecting new location content,

we are laying the foundation for that future. |

A world where coverage and content come to market faster than ever before. All while staying focused

on our high quality standards.

The world is turning to the NAVTEQ® map. The map driving a mobile world.

NAVTEQ




NAVTEQ Corporation and Subsidiaries

!
Selected Financial Data : 1
|
Consolidoted Statement of Dpefulions Data: Yeors Ended December 31, : Revenue
s . T T b
Net reverue ; S 165,849 72,623 392,858 496,512 4 581,819 -
Operating costs cnd expanses: : 500 :
Dotobese ereation and distribution costs {1) 94,356 133,119 197,089 236,405 275,449 400 .
Selling, generch, and admiristigtive expenses (1) 61,565 75,746 101,183 125,851 152,474 300 j
Tatal operating costs and expenses 155,921 208,865 298,212 362,256 427,923 200 ]
Operating incame ! 9,928 63758 9,50 134,256 153,696 " ]
Iterest income (expense), net (868) 380 1,134 4237 11,257 -
Otfeer incoma (expense), net | — 6,163 {1.892) 498 {1,008} 2000 2003 2004 2005 7006
Income befose income toues 9,260 70,301 93,828 138,991 163,945
 Intome tux expense {benafit) {2) 1 1,105 {185,514) 39,762 {31,839 l 54,481 )
~ Natinome 8155 235815 54,066 080 | 109464 marating Income
(umulative effect of chonge in accounting principle — — — — l 506 4160 -
Net income ofter cumulative effect of ' 140 E
change in occounting principle 8155 235815 54066 170,830 ‘ 109,970 120 ]
Cumulative preferred stock dividends (110,464) — — _ f _ 100 ]
Net income {loss) applicoble to common stockholders S (102,309 235,815 54,066 170,830 | 109,970 22 E
Eamings (loss) per shore of common stock: i 40 3
Busic X $ (2.41) 281 0.62 1.90 : 118 0 m
Diuted : S a4y 269 059 1 s .
Weighted average shares used in per shora computation: l 2002 2003 204 2005 2006
Bosic : 42,446 84,062 86,509 90115 il 93,009
Dilted , 42,446 87,593 92,001 9198 il 95713 Net Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet Dato! ’ As of December 31, H Unsn:::, i
ot ' B I .
Cosh and cash equivelents ! S 9427 1,982 30,101 85,070 1 122,335 0 :
Cosh on deposi with offfiste 10,000 65,307 — — \ - 0 ]
Marketable securities I — _ 72,930 133,728 200,196 150 -
Waking coitl {deic) (8433 82,088 97,587 mosss Lo e 00 .
Daferred income tox ossefs (2) ! — 172,065 142,765 211,848 ‘ 196,623 -1
Toll assets ; W3 WSS I8 61K [{enu 3 ]
Total stockholders” equity ‘ 11,237 019 131818 490,064 !|649.381
: ‘ 002 2003 006 2005 2006
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow Dato: Year Ended December 31, E
st | EEE
] o ! | Cash Flow from Operations
Cosh flow provided by aperating adtivities $ 1234 65,948 106,472 137,753 11140,008 {in mitices)
Copite! expenditures ! . {2,156} 269  {12.879) {10,466} l (17834 S0 .
Capitolized software development costs (10,027 {9,966) (12,792} (12369 i (9,055) 140 .
Total capitol expendinures ond ! l 120 3
copitlized softwore development costs (12,183) (19,235) (25,667) {22,835) 1 (26,88%) 10 J
Depreciation and amartizotion . 10,563 12.030 15,548 23,070 | 29,700 ) :g E
m (minmi‘,?ma,?om,mms::pemsjtmbmrm&dm'butmummdmbmmmfwwwmwh'ﬁmmmmw'} . 40 E
{21 Deting 2003, rhe vehuction afkowance on deferod e ossers ws peiefly versed, resubing in 0 besefi of 5158, 752. During 2004, the-baloncn of deferred fox ossets wos odfsind doa o chorkges in corpoesie income 70 -
Ao e, pimarlyin th Nethrandy, esing i epens o 53,824 uring 2005 oelina vl lwonceen defrd Yo s s versad, sl In o enetof $83,270. Akt duieg 2005, thebelncs -
of dafemed 1ox cssars wos odjsted e o the mvrsal o 1 benalts elted o defemed compensaion, resuling in ecpense o §1,836 d doe o chegesin coporu incom e gtes,svimasiy i fhe Netheronds, :
asiting in epense ol S720. ‘ \ 007 2003 2004 2005 2006
'
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To our Stockholders, :
|

Worldwide demand for GPS-enabled technology continued ilfs
strong growth in 2006 and helped propel NAVTEQ to another
record performance. Revenue for the fiscal year grew 17 pel:'cenf
over 2005, while operating income rose 14 percent. Excluding
our distribution services revenue, which declined in 2006, Ol;.lr full

year revenue grew 23 percent over the prior yeor. )

Throughout the year, we continued to strategically invest in our
datobase and strengthen our product offerings via lc:rg.;efet:ﬂi
acquisitions. These efforts enabled NAVTEQ to enhance thel
preduct at the core of our business: our highly accurate uncli
robust digital mop, a map that now features coverage for 60

I

countries on six continents. |

Fiscal 2006 was not without its challenges. Overall car scle;s,
influenced by high fuel prices and rising interest rates, declined.
Consumers who did buy new vehicles preferred small, fuel-!
efficient cars with fewer options rather than luxury models ujnd
sport utility vehicles—the vehicles more likely to include onboard
navigation. Despite this, consumer awareness continued toigrow
and customer satisfaction with GPS navigation remains high. In
fact, even with the weak new car sector, more vehicles than
ever—including low-end models—are now being sold with|
navigation systems on board. ]
Portable navigation surged in popularity and we expect molp
sales for these devices to be significant. During 2006, for J
example, several of our customers launched or announced
important new products supported by NAVTEQ® maps ondj we

expanded our business with many other customers.

In North America, sales of mop units for all types of portable
devices continued to accelerate. That growth encompassed
multiple new product launches fecturing NAVTEQ maps.
Throughout the year, NAVIEQ continued to be preactive in the
development of the location-based services (LBS) that drive this
rapidly evolving market. Cur annual Global LBS Challenge®,
an exciting contest that inviles developers to create new LBS
applications utilizing NAYTEQ maps, continues to expand. In
2006, it attracted interest and support from hundreds of
companies around the world. This post year, we also hosted our
first-ever NAVTEQ Developer Conference for the LBS industry. It
included representatives from over 200 companies, all seeking
to develop and launch LBS applications for consumer and

business seclors.

tncreasingly, governrﬁeniul agencies and businesses are using
map data to boost efficiencies. NAVTEQ is meeting the demand.
The U.5. Government chose NAVTEQ maps to help the
Department of Homeland Security synchronize its planning for
and response to emergencies and natural disasters. Our maps
are also guiding the growing number of fleet operators and
dispatchers seeking to maximize route efficiencies, minimize

driving errors, and save fuel.

In @ move to strengthen and expand our position in the rapidly
growing dynamic content business, we announced key acquisitions
and new product launches. In the fourth quarter of 2006,
NAVTEQ entered into an agreement to acquire Traffic.com, a
U.S. provider of real-time traffic dota. This acquisition, which was
completed on March é*, 2007, provides the high quality traffic
data customers and consumers want today and o technology
platferm for the future. In addition, we acquired The Map
Network, o Washington, D.C.-based producer of officiolly




licensed maps desighed to market travel destinations, special
events, hotels, and marquee venues. Qur acquisition of The Map
Netwark broadens our capacity to deliver localized content to o
wide variety of customers across multiple industries. Earlier in the
year, we also announced the acquisition of a leading Mexican
map company, MaplT!, a division of gedas AG.*

During 2006, we launched full coverage of Australia, which
extended the NAVTEQ® map footprint to a sixth continent. The
Company alse completed full Detailed Coverage for Western
Europe, with new releases for Finland, ltaly, Iberia, Norway,
and Sweden. Ongoi?’\g Eastern Europe expansion included full
coverage maps for Albanio, Bosnia and Herzegoving,
Macedonia, Monienlegro, Poland, and Serbia. In China, our joint
venture, NAV2 (formed by NAVTEQ and Navinfo), offered its
database in NAVTEQ formats for the first time and held its first
annual user group meeting. NAVTEQ opened a new office in
Shanghai near the (:'ffices of NAV2. This increased presence in
China is helping us focus our efforts to sell map data to China-

based companies that are seeking to export their products.

I
The year just completed also featured a series of new product

launches that enhance our Points of Interest (PO} offerings.
These included NAV;I'EQ Direct Access™, which allows
companies to precisely position their retail locations—restaurants,
hotels, banks/ATMs, gas stations, and more—on the NAVTEQ
map. Direct Access epitomizes NAVTEQ's ongoing commitment
to provide high qucl'ity PO! information that is occessible,
accurate, and up-to-date. It enables merchants to change their
locations en our map as those locations change in the real
world, helping them guide millions of mobile customers to their
doors. We also launched NAVTEQ Discover Cities™, an
innovative new product for mobile devices. Discover Cities

" gados AG hos since been ocquired by T-Systemns.

NAVTEQ
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features new pedestrian content like transit locations and includes
one of the worldf? most-famous and detailed travel resources,
Fodor's® Travel Guide. With Discover Cities, we're toking our
digital maps bey{-md the vehicle, helping pedestrians locate
aitractions, hotells, restaurants, stores, mass transit slops, and
more. 2006 qlso:;uw the release of the first in a series of
products that |in|%{POI data in NAVTEQYs North American map
database to information from Zagat Survey®, the world’s leading
provider of consﬂ;mer survey-based dining, travel, and leisure
information. i

i
Research has shc:awn that the most important factor influencing
user satisfaction with GPS-enabled navigation systems is map
accuracy. To confinue to exceed consumer expectations in this
critical area, NAVTEQ launched NAVTEQ Map Reporter™, an
enhanced system for collecting consumer feedback, on our
Web site. Cusfonlwlers, consumers, and developers from around
the world—we offer the service in nine languages—are now
using Map Reporter to suggest changes to our map wherever
they find them.

NAVTEQ waos the|first company to launch ¢ personalized,
real-time traffic data solution for North American in-vehicle
navigotion sysien?s. This year, we exponded our array of traffic
products to inclulde NAVTEQ Traffic RDS™, a real-time service
that enables device manufacturers and PDA and PND application
developers to prt%)Ivide our fraffic data via FM transmission.
NAVTEQ Traffic $|DS' like our other real-time traffic services,
aggregates, verifies, and quality checks data from a variety of
industry sources and was inilially brought to market with Alpine.
Late in the year, we also introduced NAVTEQ Traffic Patterns™,
which further ext%ends the functionality of our traffic products,
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Traffic Patterns effectively expands coverage by delivering useful, We remain very upbeat about the marketplace and our prospects
accurate historic traffic date for main ond secondary roads in it. We see o steady stream of demand for new products and
ocross the U.S. That dato is also aggregoted from multiple services that will require the high quality, accuracy, and detait of
sources, verified and interpreted by NAVTEQ experts, and

geocoded to the NAVTEQ® map.

NAVTEQ maps. NAVTEQ continues to compete successfully for

|
|
|
|
|
I this new business. We will continue to refine and improve our
! database by relying on our greatest asset: the intelligence,

As part of our ongoing commitment to enhancing the NAVTECB creativity, and innovation of our people. We will provide the solid

map, datobase, we rolled out a next-generation version of our, foundation for the next generation of navigation and location-

map-building sofiware. At the same fime, we introduced new | based applications. By doing so, we will continue 1o create and

versions of the tools used in creating, updating, maintaining, enable o dynamic new world of connections and possibilities.

and delivering NAVTEQ map data products. This new operotirllg
environment will increase our efficiency and help accelerate tl'{e E;
introeduction of new content and delivery capabilities. Ultimately, %

it will improve our ability to respond to the evolving needs of c:>ur

customers and the marketplace.

Judson C. Green
President and CEQC
NAVTEQ
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

|
{Amounts in thousands, except per share omounts)

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our
financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with
our consolidated financial statements ond the related noles
thereto contained elsewhere in this document. Certain information
contained in this discussion and analysis and presented elsewhere
in this document, including information with respect to our plans
and strategy for our business, includes forward-looking statements
that involve risk and uncertainties. in evaluating these statements,
you should specifically consider the various risk factors identified
in “llem 1A. Risk Foctors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2006 thal could cause resulis
lo differ materiolly from those expressed in such forward-looking
statements, !
I

Overview !
General

We are a leading provider of comprehensive digital map
information for automotive navigation systems, mabile navigation
devices and Internet-based mapping applicotions. Qur map
databose enables providers of these producis and services to
offer dynamic navigation, route planning, location-based services
and other geographic informotion-based products and services to
consumer and commercial users.

Revenue

We generate revenue primarily through the licensing of our
database in Europe, Middle East, and Africa ("EMEA"} and North
America {"Americas”). The largest portion of our revenue comes
from digital map data used in self-contained hardware and
software systems installed in vehicles (“in-dash systems”).

- 'We believe that, in addition to automobile market conditions
in general and automobile sales mix, there are two key factors that
offect our performance with respect to this revenue: the number of
automobiles sold for which navigation systems are either standard
or an option {° cdophon ") and the rate at which car buyers select
navigation systems cs an option (“take-rate”}.

We believe the cdophon of navigation systems in autemobiles
in Europe has stabilized at over 80%, but that adoption of such
systems in North America continues to increase. In addition, the
taoke-rates have increased during recent years in both Europe and
North America and we expect that these will continue to increase
for at least the next few years os a result of market acceptonce
by our customers of products and services that use our database
and anticipated reductions in the price of in-dash systems. As the
adoption of navigation systems in outomobiles increases in North
America, and the take-rates in both North America and Europe
increase, we believe each of these can have a positive effect on
our revenue, subject fo our ability to maintain cur license fee
structure and customer base.

In addition, the' market for products and services that use
our database is evolving, and we believe that much of our future
success depends upon the development of a wider variety of
products and services thal use our databose. This includes growth
in location-enabled’ mobile devices, such as mobile phones,
personal digital assistants (FDAs), persenal navigation devices
{PNDs) and other products and services that use digital map
data. Qur revenue growth is driven, in part, by the rate at which
consumers and businesses purchase these products and services,
which in turn is affected by the availability and functionality of

[

such products cmild services. We believe that both of these factors
have increased Iin recent years and will continue to increase
for at least the n'ex? few years. However, even if these products
and services continue to be developed and marketed by our
customers and Hum market acceptance, we moy not be able
to license the databose at prices that will enable us to maintain
profitable operch.ons Moreover, the market for map information
is highly competitive, and competitive pressures in this area may
result in price reductions for our database, which could materially
adversely affect olur business and prospecis.

We expect 1hoi revenve derived from the use of our data
in location- enabled mobile devices will represent an increasing
percentage of our total revenue in the next few years. As a result,
our total revenue will likely hove a more seasonal pattern with
first quarter revenue generclly being relatively weaker than other
quarters and foudh quarter revenue genernlly being relatively
stronger than other quarters. Since we are in the early stages
of this shift in 1c')ur business, our ability to forecast revenue,
particularly in the fourth quarter, may be limited, and may result
in material differences between forecasted operating resulis and
our actual results

We have olso experienced, and expect lo continue to
experience, dnfﬁculfy in maintaining the license fees we charge
for our digital mup dotabase due to a number of factors,
including automotive and mobile device customer expectations of
continually |ower||||cense fees each year and o highly competilive
environment. In addition, governmental and quasi-governmental
entities ore increc'fsingly making map data information with higher
quohiy and greater coverage available free of charge or at lower
prices. Custorners may determine that the data offered by such
entities is an cdequcfe alternative to our map database for all
or some of Thelr'opphcotions Additionally, the availability of this
data may encourage new entrants into the market by decreasing
the cost to build map database similar to ours. In response to
these pressures, »ire ore focused on:

+ Offering a dlgltol map database with superior quality,
detail and ccgvercge,

Providing value-added services to our customers such

as distribution services, and technical and markeling
support; und]

* Enhoncing and extending - our product offerlng by
adding oddlhoncl content to our map database such
as m\‘egrafed real-ime troffic data, enhancements to
support advonced driver assistance systems applications
that |mprove vehicle safety ond performonce, and
enriched pomfs of interest, such as restaurant reviews,
hours of operchon and parking availability.

We also believe that in the foreseeable future the effect on
our revenue and]'profiiabili'fy as a result of any decreases in our
license fees will be offset by volume increases as the market for
produdts and servnces that use our database grows, although we
cannot assure you that these increases will occur.

While we have only one customer that accounts far more
than 10% of our| revenue, we have another significant customer
that did not pay ns license fees in o timely manner during 2006.
We have recelved partial payments and we continue to work with
this customer to receive full payment from them. This customer
has paid all ouisf}:‘:ndmg receivables that have been recorded. We
are now only recordmg revenve from this customer when cash
has been recelvea However, to the extent that this customer or
other significant cusfomers are unable or unwilling to pay past
due amounts and .rermt timely payments in the future, our revenue
may be significantly less than we expect for the full yeor.




[
Operating Expenses i
Our operating expenses are comprised of database creation and
distribution costs, and selling, general and administrative expenses
Database creation and distribution costs primarily mcludejthe
purchase and licensing of source maps, employee compensation
ond third party fees related to the construction, maintenance and
delivery of our dotabase. Selling, general ond administrative
expenses primarily include employee compensation, morkehng,
facilities and other administrative expenses.

During the first quarter of 2006, we conducted @ revnew of
the classification of our operating expenses. As a result of this
review, costs associated with certain functional groups historically
classified as selling, general, and administrative expenses were
reclossified as database creation and distribution costs. Certain
operating expenses in previously reported periods have been
reclassified to conform to this presentation. Total operating
expenses were not affected by the reclassification. i

Our operating expenses have increased as we have
made investments reloted to the development, |mprovenpenf
and commercialization of our dotabase. We anticipate 1hc:f
operating expenses will continue to increase os our growth and
development activities continue, including  further development
and' enhancement of our dotabose and increasing our s'oles
and marketing efforts, During the second quarter of 2006, we
implemented o cost management program to slow the growfh
in our operating expenses. The progrom involved delaying or
cancelling certain discretionary spending. While we plan to
continue this cost management program in 2007, we do!not
intend on delaying or cancelling expenses to the extent we believe
such spending is critical for future growth. 5

On January 1, 2006, we odopted Financial Acccwnhng
Standards Board Statement of Financial Accounting S’rondcrds
{SFAS) No. 123{(R), “Share-Based Poyment.”  This reqqures
all share-bosed payments to employees, including grants of
employee stock options, to be recognized as an operating expense
in the statement of operations. The cost will be recognized over
the requisite service period based on fair values measured_ oh
grant dates. We recognized stock-based compensation expense
of $14,501 for the year ended December 31, 2006. We also
recorded a cumulotive effect of changing to SFAS No. 123(R
resulilng in income of $506 {net of income tax expense of $3] 2)
in the first quarter of 2004, !

Income Taxes '
As of December 31, 2006, we haod U.S. net operating |Ioss
carryforwards for Federol and state income tax purposes of
approximately $294,691 ond $127,370, respectively. [The
difference between the Federal and state loss ccrryforwcrds
relate to certain limitations crpphccble to us because our prmcnpal
operations were previously located in Californio. These include
a 50% limitation on Cadlifornia loss carryforwards, copitalized
research ond development costs for California income’ tax
purposes and a five-year limit on California net operating 'loss
carryforwards. Net operating loss carryforwards are availoble
to reduce future toxable income subject to expiration. Various
amounts of our net operating loss carryforwards expire, if, not
utilized, each year until 2026, |

The Company also hos available tax credit carryforwards of
approximately $4,443 and $1,930 for U.5. Federal and sfote tax
purposes, respectively.

if not utilized, U.S. Federal and state net operating ;loss
carryforwards expire through 2026 and U.S. Federal tax credit
carryforwards expire in 2022, as follows: |

Federal net State net Federal
operaling loss operaling loss tax eredit

Year of expiration carryforwards carryforwards carryforwards
2007 5 — S 4 § 152
2008 : 4,039 284 14
2009 55 244 8
2010 2512 6,706 102
2011 34,609 470 185
Thereofter through 2026 224,556 118,762 3,862
§ 294,691 $ 127370 S 4443

As of December 31, 2006, we eolso had net operating loss
carryforwards in Canada of approximately $1,103. If not ufilized,
these carryforwards will expire in 2007. The Canadian loss
carryforwards generally hove o seven-year carryforward period.
In addition, as of December 31, 2006, we had U.S. interest
expense carryforwards for both Federal and state income tox
purposes of approximately $205,328. There is no expiration date
for state tax credit carryforwards and U.S. Federal interest expense
carryforwards.

Prior to 2003, we had fully provided a valuation allowance
for the potential benefits of the net operating loss and interest
expense carryforwards as we believed it was more likely than not
that the benefits would not be realized. During the fourth quarter
of 2003, we reversed the valuation allowance related to the net
operating loss carryforwards and other temporary items as we
believed it was more likely than not that we would be able to use
the benefit to reduce future tox liabilities. The reversal resulted
in recognition of an income tox benefit of $168,752 in 2003
and a corresponding increase in the deferred tax asset on the
consolidated balance sheet.

As of June 27, 2004, we had fully reserved for the tax benefits
related to the interest expense carryforwards as we believed it
was more likely than not that the benefits would not be realized.
At such time, we believed it was more likely than not that we
would not realize the benefit associated with the interest expense
carryforwards due to (1) restrictions placed on the deductibility
of the interest as a result of a controlling interest in us by Philips
Consumer Electronics Services B.V. (Philips) and (2) uncertainty
about our ability to generate sufficient incremental future taxable
income in the United States to offset the odditional interest
expense deductions. During the third quarter of 2004, Philips
relinquished its controlling interest in us after our initial public
offering. We are now allowed to deduct the deferred interest
expense in tandem with our net operating loss carryforwards. As a
result, we reevaluated, in.the third quarter of 2004, whether it was
more likely than not that the tax benefits associated with our net
operating loss carryforwords together with our interest expense
carryforwards would be realized. Based on that evaluation, we
determined the amount of net deferred tax assets that we believed
it was more likely than not that we would realize. Our estimate
of the deferred tax assets that we expected was more likely thon
not to be realized did not require us to record an adjustment to
the balance of the related voluation allowance prier to the third
quanter of 2005.

During the third quarter of 2005, we recorded on income
tax benefit of $83,270 related to the reversol of the valuation
allowance on a portion of our deferred tax assets. We alse
recorded the reversal of tax benefits of $1,836 related to deferred
compensation. In addition, we reversed the valuation allowance
on deferred tax assets associated with stock-based compensation,
which resulted in an increase to odditiona! poid-in capital of
$34,552. We reassessed the realizability of the deferred tax assets
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and made the determination that it is more likely than not that we
would be able to realize the benefits of the deferred tox ossets
reloted to net operating loss carryforwards and deferred interest
credits in the United States. In reaching the determination, we
considered both pesitive and negative evidence. Positive evidence
included our strong recent revenue -growth ond operating
performance, expectations regarding the generation of future
taxable income, The length of available carryforward periods,
our market posmon ond the expected growth of the market.
Negative evidence included our history of operating  losses
through 2001 and the likelihood of increased competition and
loss of a significant customer, From that analysis, we determined
that sufficient evidence existed to conclude that it was more likely
tham not that the benefits of certain of the deferred tax assets
will be realized. Accordingly, we reversed the related valuation
ollowance. As of December 31, 2005, we had o valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets of $2,728 related to Canadian
nel operating loss ¢arryforwards and research and experimental
tax credits, '

During the fourth quarter of 2004, we revalued the deferred
tox wsset on our balance sheet due to changes in statutory
corporate income fax rates, resulting in o decrease to deferred
tox assets and additional income tax expense of $3,824. This
revaluation was primarily due to legislation in the Netherlands
enacted during the fourth quarter of 2004 that reduced statutory
corporate income tax rates from 34.5% to 30% in stages over a
four-year period starting in 2005, The 2006 statutory corporate
income tax rate was subsequently reduced to 29.6% in the fourth
quarter of 2005. |

During the fourth quarter of 2005, we again revalued
the deferred tox asset on our balance sheet due io changes in
statutory income tax rates in the Netherlands and chonges in
the apportionment:of income among states in the United States,
resulting in a decrease to deferred tox ossets and additional
income tax expense of $720.

Cash ond Liquidity
Prior to the year ended December 31, 2002, we had been
unprofitable on an annual basis since our inception, and, as
of December 31,; 2006, we had an accumulated deficit of
$186,914. !

As of December 31, 2006, our balance of cash and cash
equivalents and marketable securities was $322,531, compored
to $218,798 as of December 31, 2005, which represents an
increase of $103, 733

In 2007, we expect to utilize a portion of our cash in the
acquisition of Traffic.com. A total of up to approximately $49,000
in cash may be utilized to fund this acquisition, which would
reduce our cash and liquidity. The remainder of the merger
consideration will Elae paid in shares of our common stack.

Foreign Currency Risk

Material portions of our revenue and expenses have been
generated by our European operations, and we expect that
our European operohons will account for a material portion of
our revenue and expenses in the future. Substantially all of our
international expenses and revenue are denominated in foreign
currencies, principally the euro. As a result, our financial results
could be offected by factors such as changes in foreign currency
exchange rates or weak economic conditions in Europe and
other fareign markets in which we have operations. Accordingly,
fluctuations in the volue of those currencies in relation to the U.S.
dollar have caused and will confinue to couse dollar-franslated
omounls to vary from one period to another. In addition to
currency translation risks, we incur currency transaction risk
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whenever one of our operating subsidiaries enters into either a.

purchase or a sules transaction using o eurrency other than the
local currency in ''which it receives revenue and pays expenses.
Hlstoncclly,lwe had not engaged in activities to hedge our

. foreign currency exposures. On April 22, 2003, we entered into

a foreign currency derivative instrument to hedge certain foreign
currency exposures related to mtercompuny fransactions. The
underlying |ntercornpony loan was repaid in the second quarter
of 2006 and the]msirument has been terminated. See Note 10 fo
our Consolldoied Financig! Statements for additional information
on this foreign currency derivative instrument. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, we generated approximately $3% of our net
revenue and mcurred approximately 48% of our total expenses in
foreign currencies. Our European operations reported revenue
of $360,056 forilhe year ended December 31, 2006. Due to on
increase in the exchcnge rate of the euro against the dollar, os
compared to 2005 European revenue was approximately $5,236
higher than whut would have been reported had the exchange
rate not |ncreqsed Based on the results of the year ended
December 31, -2006, every one cent change in the exchange
rate of the euro] aguinst the dollor resulted in opproximately
$2,900 chaengefin our revenue and approximately a $1,400
change in our operating income. Our analysis does not consider
the rmpllcchons' that such fluctuations could have on the overall
economic cchvrfy that could exist in such an environment in the

United States or Evrope.
i

Customer Concenfruhon

Material porhons of our revenue have been generated by a small
number of customers, and we expect thot a smoll number of
customers will c:lcc0unt for o material poriion of our revenue in the
future. For the year ended December 31, 2006, approximately
12% of our revenue was from one customer. Approximately 13%
of our revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 was from
one cuslomer. rrlo other customer accounted for 10% or mare of
our revenue for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Approximotely 26% of our revenue for the year ended
December 31, f2004 was from two customers, occounting for
approximately 16% and 10%, respectively, of our revenue. Cur
top fifteen custo'mers accounted for approximately 77%, 76% and
71% of our revenue for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006 respectively.

The mc|or,|ty of our significant customers are automobile
manufacturers{jand suppliers to automobile manufacturers.
Conditions in|the market for new automobiles generally
and conditions affecting specific automobile manufacturers
and suppliers r€r10y offect sales of vehicle navigation systems
incorporating our dolabase. Fluctuotions in the automotive
market have occurred in the past and are likely to occur in the
future. To the éxtent that our future revenue depends materially
on sales of ne‘:a]v outornobiles equipped with navigation systems
enabled by digital maps, our business may be vulnerable to these
fluctuations.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of operbtions are based upon our consolidated financial
statements, wh|ch have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally cccepied occounting principles. The preparation of
these fmoncral‘sicﬂements requires that we make estimates and
judgments 1hut|uffed the reported amounts of ossets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. On an ongonng basis, we evaluole our estimates

based on hrsferlcoi experience and make various assumptions
i




that we believe to be reasonable vnder the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments al::nom
the carrying values of assets ond liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We
believe that, of the significant policies used in the preporutlron
of our consolidated financial stotements (see Note 1 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements), the following are critical
occounting estimates, which may involve a higher degree
of judgment ond complexity. Management has discussed the
development and selection of these critical accounting estimates
with our Audit Commitiee, and our Audit Committee has reviewed
this disclosure. 1

Revenue Recognition |

We derive a substantial majority of our revenue from licensing
our database. We provide our dota to end-users through multiple
distribution methods, primaorily media or server-based. For
exomple, our customers produce copies of our data on vori{)us
media, such as CD-ROMs, DVDs and memory cards. Qur
customers then distribute those media to end-users directly cnd
indirectly through retail establishments, automobile manufudurers
and their dealers, and other redistributors. The media may:be
sold by our customer separately from its products, bundled with
its products or otherwise incorporated into its products. We also
produce copies of our data and distribute those copies to end-users
both directly and indirectly through automobile manufacturers
and their dealers. Additionally, some of our customers store our
dato on servers and distribute infermation, such as map images
ond driving directions, derived from our data over the Internet
and through other communication networks. |

Revenue is recognized net of provisions for estimated
uncollectible ameunts and anticipoted returns. Our map database
license ogreements provide evidence of our arrangements w'rith
our customers, and identify key controct terms related to pncmg,
delivery and payment. We do not recognize revenue from
licensing our database until delivery hos occurred and collec’non is
considered probable. We provide for estimated product returns at
the time of revenue recognition based on our historical experience
tor such returns, which have not been material. As a result, we
do not believe there is significant risk of recognizing revenue
prematurely.

For revenue distributed through the media-based method,
license fees from usage (including license fees in excess of the
nonrefundable minimum fees) are recognized in the period'in
which they are reported by the customer to us. Prepoid licensing
fees are recognized in the period in which the distributor lor
customer reporis that it has shipped our database to the end-
user. Revenue for direct sales is recognized when the database is
shipped to the end-user. 1

For revenue distributed through the server-based method,
revenue includes amounts that are associated with nonrefundable
minimum licensing fees, license fees from usage (including license
fees in excess of nonrefundoble minimum fees), recognition
of prepaid licensing fees from our distributors and customers
ond direct sales to end-users. Nonrefundable minimum annual
licensing fees are received upfront and represent o mlnlmum
guarantee of fees to be received from the licensee (for sales made
by that party to end-users} during the period of the arrangement.
We generally cannot determine the amount of up-front license
fees that have been earned during a given period until we receive
a report from the customer. Accordingly, we amortize the total
up-front fee paid by the customer ratably over the term of the
arrangement. When we determine that the actual amount ;of

licensing fees earned exceeds the cumulative revenue recognized
under the amortization method (becouse the customer reports
licensing fees to us that exceed this amount), we recognize the
additionol licensing revenue,

Licensing arrangements that entitle the customer to unspecified
updates over a pericd of time are recognized as revenue ratably
over the period of the arrangement.

Allowance for Doubtul Accounts

We record allowances for estimated losses from uncoliectible
accounts bosed upon specifically identified amounts thot we
believe to be uncollectible, In addition, we record additional
allowances based on historical experience and our ossessment of
the general financial condition of our customer base. If our actual
collections experience changes, revisions to our allowances may
be required.

We have a number of customers with individually large
amounts due at any given balance sheet date. Any unanticipated
chonge in the creditworthiness of one of these customers or other
matters affecting the collectibility of amounts due from these
customers could have o material adverse affect on our resulls of
operations in the period in which these changes or events occur.

The allowance for doubtful accounts as reflected in our
consolidated balance sheet reflects our best estimate of the
arnount of our gross accounts receivable that will not be collected.
Our aclual level of bad debts has been relatively stable in recent
years, which we believe is due to our praclice of requiring
customer prepayments in certain instances together with prompt
identification of potential problem accounts. We continue to refine
our estimates for bad debts as our business grows, and while our
credit losses have historically been within both our expectations
and the provision recorded, fluctuations in credit loss rates in the
future may offect our financiol results.

Database Creation, Distribution and

Software Development Costs

We have invested significant amounts in creating ond updating our
database and developing related software applications for internal
use. Database creation and distribution costs consist of dotabase
creation and updating, dotabose licensing and distribution, and
dotobose-related software development. Dotabase creation and
vpdating costs are expensed as incurred. These costs include the
direct costs of database creation and validation, costs to obtain
information used to construct the database, and ongoing costs
for updating and enhancing the database content. Database
licensing and distribution costs include the direct costs related
to reproduction of the database for licensing and per-copy sales
and shipping and hondling costs. Databose-related. software
development costs consist primarily of costs for the development
of software as follows: {i] applications used infernally to improve
the effectiveness of dotabase creation ond updating activities,
{ii) enhancements to internal applications that enable our core
datobaose to operate with emerging technologies, and (i)
applications to facilitate customer use of our database. Costs
of internal-use software are occounted for in accordance with
AICPA Statement of Position (“SOP”) No. 98-1, “Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for
Internal Use.” Accordingly, certain application development
costs relating to internal-use software have been capitolized and
are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. |1 is possible that our estimates of the
remaining economic life of the technology could change from the
current amortization periods. In that event, impairment charges or
shortened useful lives of internal-use software could be required.
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impairment of Long-lived Assets

As of December 31, 2005 and 2006, our long-lived ossels
consisted of property and equipment, internal-use software
and acquired intangible assets. We review long-lived assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovercble.
Additionally, goodwﬂl is reviewed on ot least an annual basis
as well to determine if our recorded goodwill amounts are
impaired in any manner. Recoverability of assets to be held and
used is measured by comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expecied to
be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is
recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Significont manogement
judgment is required in determining the fair value of our long-
lived assets io medsure impairment, including projections of
future discounted cash flows.

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets

The assessment of the realizability of deferred tax assets involves
o high degree of judgment and complexity. In assessing the
realizability of deferred tax assels, management considers
whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be reclized. The realization of deferred
fax assets is dependenf upon the generation of future taxable
income during the penods in which temporary differences, os
determined pursuant to SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income
Taxes,” become dedudible. Management considers the scheduled
reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future toxable
income, ond tax planning sirategies in making this assessment,
Management's evaluation of the realizability of deferred tax
ossets must consider both positive and negative evidence, and
the weight given to the potential effects of positive and negative
evidence is based on the extent lo which it can be objectively
verified. We have genercted significant taxable losses since our
inception, and prlor to the year ended December 31, 2003,
management had concluded that a valuation allowance against
substantially all of our deferred tax assets was required. However,
our European operations generated taxable profits throughout
2002, and for the year ended December 31, 2003, both our
European and UL.S. operations generated toxoble income. During
2003, we ossessed the realizability of our deferred tax assets by
weighing both positive and negative evidence. Positive evidence
included qualitative factors such as growing market acceptonce
of navigation products in Europe and North America, particularly
in automobiles, our leading competitive positions in both Europe
ond the U.5., and thé significant time required and cost involved
in building o database such as ours. Positive quantitolive evidence
included our strong rf::cem operating performance in both Europe
ond the U.S., our projections of our future operating results that
indicate that we will be able to generate sufficient taxable income
to fully realize the benefits of our existing loss carryforwards
before they expire, ond the length of carryforward periods related
to our net operating losses, approximalely half of which have no
statutory expiration date. Negative evidence included our history
of operaling losses through 2001, the likelihood of increased
competition and the loss of o large customer. After evaluating
the available evidence, management determined that sufficient
objective evidence existed to conclude that it was more likely than
not that a portion of the deferred tax assets would be realized.
Accordingly, we reversed the valuation allowance reloted to net
operating loss carryforwards and other temporary items in Eurcpe
and the United Stales, resulting in the recognition of an income
tax benefit of $168,752 in 2003.

© As of June”27, 2004, we had fully reserved for the tax
benefits related 1o interest expense carryforwards as we believed
it was more Iikel)'r than not that the benefits would not be realized.
At that time, we|believed it was more likely than not thot we
would not reullze the benefit associated with the interest expense
carryforwords due to (1) restrictions placed on the dedudnbdny of
the inlerest as a result of Philips’ controlling interest in us and {2)
our ability 1o generute sufficient incremental future taxoble income
in the United St‘ctes to offset the additional interest expense
deductions. Dunng the third quarter of 2004, Philips relinquished
its controlling |nteresf in us after our initial public offering. We
were then c||owed fo deduct the deferred interest expense in
tandem with our net operating loss carryforwards. Consequently,
we reevaluated, in the third quarter of 2004, whether it was more
likely than not that the tax benefits associated with our net operating
loss ccrryfo:wcrdls and our interest expense carryforwards would
be realized. Our ‘evcluohon considered both positive and negative
evidence, and ihe weight given o the potentiol effects of positive
and negative evn;jence was based on the extent to which it can
be objectively verlified in the same manner as described above for
the evaluation completed in 2003. Based on this evoluation, we
determined the ar%‘wunt of net deferred tax assels that we believed
was more likely Thcn not that we will realize. The amount that
was determined qhd not require us to record an adjustment to the
balance of the reloted valuation allowance.

During the third quarter of 2005, we reassessed the
realizability of the deferred tax assets and made the determination
that it is more likély than not that we would be able to realize the
benefits of the de'ferred tax ossets related to net operating loss
carryforwards and deferred interest credits in the United States.
In reaching the! determination, we considered both positive
and negative ewdence Positive evidence included our strong
recent revenue growfh and operating performance, expectalions
regording the gelherohon of future toxable income, the length
of available ccrryforwcrd periods, our market position and the
expecled growth | of the market. Negative evidence included our
history of operuhng losses through 2001 and the likelihood of
increased competition and loss of a significant customer. From
that analysis, we ldetermined that sufficient evidence existed to
conclude that it was more likely than not that the benefits of
certain of the deferred tax assets will be realized. Accordmgly, we
reversed the reluted valuation allowance and recorded an income
tax benefit of $83 270. In addition, we reversed the valuation
allowance on deferred tax assets associated with stock-based
compensation, whlch resulted in an increase to additional paid-in
capitol of $34, 552

As of December 31, 2006, we had o valuation allowance for
deferred tax c:sseisi of $2 439 related to Canadian net operating
loss corryforwords, and research and experimental tax credits,

We cannet c:lssure you thot we will continue to experience
taxable income at levels consistent with recent performance in
some or all of the jurisdictions in which we do business. In the
event that actual|[toxable income differs from our projections
of toxable income by jurisdiction, changes in the valuation
allowance, whlch could offect our financial position and net
income, may be requared

Results of Operations

Comparison of Yelars Ended December 31, 2005 and 2006

Operating l'ncome, Net Income .and Net Income Per Share of
Common Stock. Our operahng income increased from $134,256
in 2005 to $153 696 in 2006, due primorily fo our revenue
growth in 2006.!{Our net income decreased from $170,830
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in 2005 to $109,970 in 2006 due to an income tax benefit of
$83,270 recorded in 2005 primarily related to the reversal of
the valuation allowance on a portion of cur deferred tax assets
offset by higher operating income and a lower effedlive tax frate
in 2006. Basic net income per share of common stock decreased
from $1.90 in 2005 to $1.18 in 2006. Diluted net income! per
share of common stock decreased from $1.81 in 2005 to $l 15
in 2006.

The following table highlights changes in selected line ih'ams,
which are material to our results of operations. An analysis of
the factors affecting each line is provided in the paragraphs that
appear ofter the table. In addition, the percentage change for
income tax (benefit) expense os compared to the prior year |s not
specn‘led below. We believe that this percentage is not mecnmgful
since the change is unusually large due to o non-recurring liem
more fully described in the narrative section below.

2005 2006 Chonge % Change

Net revenue $496512 581,619 85,107 ”.]Df‘}I
Datubose crection |

and distibution costs 236,405 775,449 39,044 16.5%
Selling, general and }

udministrotive expenses 125,581 152,474 26,623 0.2%
Other income 4735 10,249 5514 116.5%
Income fax (benefil} expense {31,839 54,481 86,320 |

|
"Net Revenve. The increase in net revenue was due to an
increase in dotabase licensing, resulting primarily from increased
unit sales to customers, Growth occurred in EMEA and Ame:ricos
in 2006. EMEA revenue increased 13.9% from $316,208 in
2005 to $360,056 in 2006. Americas revenue increased 25.1%
from $172,789 in 2005 to $216,150 in 2006. EMEA'cnd
Americas revenue both increased primarily due 1o the i increase
in unit sales to vehicle navigation systems vendors, cutomoblle
manufacturers and mobile device manufacturers. D|Herences in
foreign currency translation increased revenue within the EMEA
operations by approximately $5,236 during 2006 as compared
to 2005. Revenue related to sales of our dotabase used in vehicle
navigation systems as a percentage of our revenue decreased to
66% of our revenue in 2006 from 72% of our revenue in 2005
Excluding the effect of the foreign currency translation, EMEA
revenue would have grown 12.2% in 2006 as compared to 2005
Approximately 13% ond 12% of our revenues from 2005 and

2006, respectively, came from one customer. i

|
Database Creation and Distribution Costs. The increase

in database creation and distribution costs was due primarily
to - geographic expansion and quality improvements.i The
capitalization of $12,369 aond $9,055 for 2005 and 2006
respectively, for internal-use software reduced our expenses in
those periods. A favarable foreign currency translation effect
decreased expenses within EMEA operations by opproxin%c:tely
$2,502 in 2006 as compared to 2005. /

Approximately 53% of our database creation I and
distribution costs for 2006 were comprised of personnel, 5oﬁwore
amortization, stock-based compensation, occupancy, and ‘other
business infrastructure expenses. Qur direct distribution costs were
approximately 33% of datobose creation and distribution costs in
2006.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. The increase

in selling, general and administrative expenses was due primarily
to our investments in growing our worldwide sales force; cnd

12

expanding the breadth of our product offerings and expenses
related to improving our infrastructure to support future growth.
Stock based compensation expense of $8,236 was recorded in
selling, general and administrative expense in 2005, compared fo
511,665 in 2006. A favorable foreign currency translation effect
decreased expenses within EMEA operations by approximately
$977 for 2006 as compared to 2005.

Approximately 75% of our selling, general, and administrative
expenses for 2006 were comprised of personnel, stock-based
compensation, occupancy and other business infrastructyre
expenses.

Other Income. Interest income increased from $4,262 in
2005 to $11,269 in 2006 primarily due to higher average cash
bolances in 2006 as well as higher percentage returns on the
invested cash,

Income Tax (Benefif) Expense. The increase in income tax
expense is primarily due to the income tax benefit of $83,270
recorded in the third quarter of 2005, as a result of the reversal
of the valuation allowance on g portion of our deferred tax asset.
Excluding the effects of the net income tax benefit, the effective tax
rate in 2005 was 35.16% as compared to 33.2% in 2006. The
decrease in the effective tax rate was primarily due to legislation
in the Netherlands enacted during the fourth quarter of 2005 that
reduced the 2006 statutory corporate income tax rate to 29.6%.
The 2005 statutory corporate income tax rate in the Netherlands
was 31.5%.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2005
Operating Income, Net Income and Net Income Per Shore of
Common Stock. Our operating income increased from $94,586
in 2004 to $134,256 in 2005, due primarily fo our revenue
growth in 2005. Our net income increased from $54,066 in
2004 to $170,830 in 2005, due primarily to the $83,270 effect
of the reversal of the voluation cliowance on our deferred tax
assets related to net operating loss carryforwards and deferred
interest credits in 2005 and our higher operafing income. Basic
nel income per share of commaon stock increased from $0.62 in
2004 to $1.90 in 2005. Diluted net income per share of common
stock increased from $0.59 in 2004 o $1.81 in 2005.

The following table highlights changes in selected line items,
which are material to our results of operations. An analysis of
the foctors affecting each line is provided in the paragraphs
that appear after the table. in addition, the percentage change
for other income {expense) ond income tax {benefit) expense os
compared to the prior year is not specified below. We believe
that these percentages are not meaningful since the changes are
unusually large due to non-recurring items more fully described
in the narrative section for each.

2004 2005 Change % Change

Net revenue $ 392,858 496,512 103,654 26.4%
Database creation

and distribution costs 197,089 236,405 33318 20.0%
Selling, generol and

odmiristrative expenses 101,183 125,851 24,668 24.4%
Other income (expense) {758) 4,735 5,493
Income tax (benefit) expense 39,742 (31,839) (7,601

Net Revenue. The increase in total revenue was due to a
significant increase in database licensing, resulting primarily from
increased unit sales to existing customers. Growth occurred in all




geographic regions'in 2005. European revenue increased 18.2%
from $267,541 in 2004 to $316,208 in 2005. North American
revenue increased 37.9% from $125,317 in 2004 1o $172,789
in 2005. European and North American revenue both increased
primarily due to the increase in unit sales to vehicle navigation
systams vendors, automobile manufacturers and mobile device
manufacturers. Foreéign currency translation decreased revenue
within the Europech operations by approximately $666 during
2005 due to the weckenmg of the euro. Revenue related to
sales of our dutcbose used in vehicle navigation systerns as a
percentage of our revenue decreased to 72% of our revenue in
2005 from 82% of our revenue in 2004, Approximately 26% of
our revenue for 2004 came from two customers {accounting for
opproximately 16% ond 10% of total revenue, respectively), while
only one customer accounted for more than 10% of our revenue
in 2005 (occounting for 13%).

Database Creation and Distribution Costs. The increase in
database creation and distribution costs was due primarily to
increased production costs of approximately $20,700 in 2005
as compared to 2004, associated with higher sales where we
provided distribution services, and our continued investment
in updating, improving ond maintaining the coverage of our
dotabase thot resulted in an increose of approximately $20,500
in 2005 as compared to 2004. This was offset by lower expenses
related to technological enhancements to our database in
both North America and Europe that resulted in o decrease of
approximately $4,200 in 2005 as compared to 2004. Reducing
these expenses was the capitalization of $12,792 and $12,369
of development costs for infernal-use software in 2004 and 2005,
respectively. ; :

Approximately 48% of our dotobase, creation, and
distribution cosis for 2005 were comprised of personnel, software
amortization, stock-based compensation, occupancy, and other
business infrastructure expenses. Qur direct distribution costs were
approximately 38% of database creation and distribution cosis in
2005.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. The increase in
selling, general and adminisirative expenses was due primarily to
our investments in growing the size of our worldwide sales force
and expanding the breadth of our product offerings resulting in
an increase of approximately $20,000 in 2005 as compared 1o
2004. Also contributing to the increase were expenses related to
improving our infrastructure to support future growth that resulted
in an increase of approximately $7,700 in 2005 as compared 1o
2004. Included in selling, general and administrative expenses
during 2005 was approximately $2,400 of costs related to
our obligation to match social taxes on employee slock option
exercises, _

Approximately 74% of our selling, general, and administrative
expenses for 2005 were comprised of personnel, stock-based
compensation, occupancy and other business infrastructure
expenses. .

Other Income : (Expense). Inferest income increased from
$1,158 in 2004 to $4,262 in 2005 primarily due to higher
average cash balances in 2005 as well as higher percentage
returns on the invested cash. In addition, during 2004 we
recorded o foreign: currency loss of $1,686 as compared to a
foreign currency gain of $502 in 2005. The gain in 2005 was
primarily due 1o the strengthening of the U.S. dollar as compared
to the euro. '

Income Tax“BenefH {Expense}. The decrease in income tax
expense is primarily due to the income tax benefit of $83,270
recorded in the third quarter of 2005, as a result of the reversal
of the valuation |célllowcmce on a portion of our deferred tax asset.
In addition, we recorded expense of $1,836 reloted to.deferred
compensation Gll“ld expense of 3720 related to the revaluation
of our deferred tax asset due to changes in statutory income tax
rates in the Netherlands and changes in the apportionment of

I

income omong states in the United States. Excluding the effecis
of the net mcome tax benefit recorded in 2005, the effective tax
rafe in 2005 was 35.16% as compared to 38.3% in 2004. The
decrease in the effeduve tax rate was primarily due to legislation
in the Netherlunds enacted during the fourth quarter of 2004 that
reduced sfcfutory corporate income tax rates from 34.5% 1o 30%
in stages over u‘four-yeor period starting in 2005.

Liquidity and Ci‘:pital Resources

Since 2002, we have financed our operations through
cash generated lfrom operating income. As of December 31,
2006, cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities
totaled $322,53] compared to cash and cosh equivalents and
marketable secuélhes as of December 31, 2005 in the amount of
$218,798, whlch represents an increase of $103,733.

On November 30, 2006, we extended through our operating
subsidiary for Nénh Americo, our revolving line of credit that waos
scheduled to mature on December 1, 2006. Pursuant to the terms
of the line of crednt we may borrow up to $50,000 ot an inferest
rate of either U: S LIBOR plus 0.5% or the greater of the prime
rote or the Federal funds rate plus 0.5%. We are required to pay
to the bank o qu1or1erly facility fee of 7.5 basis points per annum
on the average dcnly unused commilment. We have guoranteed
our operating SlUbSIdICII'Y s obligations under this facility. As of
December 31, 2006 there were no outstonding borrowings
against this line 'of credit. This line of credit expires on December
1,2007. |

Since the ﬁrsf quarter of 2002, our operations have continued
to produce posifive cash flows. The cash flows have been driven
by increosed de;fnand for our products and our ability to deliver
these produdsilprofiiobly aond collect receivables from our
customers effechvely These funds have allowed us to make
investments requnred to grow the business and have provided us
excess cosh. Since August 2004, we have invested cash balances
in excess of our short-term operalional needs in cash equivalents
and marketqble'secunhes of high credit quality.

The followmg table presents our contractual cash obligations
as of December 31, 2006:

Payments Due by Penqt_i

Contractuot l 1 Yeor 13 45 Ater

Cosh Obligations 1] Total ortess  Yeors Years  5Yeurs
Operating leases ¢ 94,382 15557 21949 13545 43331

!

We do not have any off-balonce sheet arrangements
other thon the i(‘Jperclﬁng leases identified in the toble above.
Additionally, the'] amounis in the table above include amounts
reloted to rents for our new headquariers in Chicago, IL that we
will be moving mto in September 2007.

We belleve that our curremt cash resources on hand,
temporary excess cash deposited in cash equivalents and
marketable secu'rmes and cash flows from operations, together
with funds avmloble from the revolving line of credit, will be
adequate to schsfy our anticipated working capital needs and
capital expend:tLl;re requirements at our current level of operations




for at leost the next twelve months. We do, however, consider
additional debt and equity financing from time to fime and may
enter into these financings in the future. !

In 2007, we expect to utilize a portion of our cash inithe
acquisition of Traffic.com. A total of approximately $49,000 in
cash will be utilized to fund this acquisition, which would reduce
our cash and liquidity. The remainder of the merger consnderohon
will be paid in shares of our common stock.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by $37,245 durmguhe
year ended December 31, 2006. The changes in cash and cc:sh

equivalents for the periods ended are as follows:
!

Year ended Dec. 31, i

2004 2005 2006 |
Cash provided by opetating adtivities $106,422 137,753 140,008
{ash used in investing oivities (34324} (945300 (134813
Cosh pravided by (used in) financing activities (45,766} 14,190 26,256
Effect of exchonge rotes on cash 1,587 (2,444) 5,8]4l
Inerease in cosh and cosh equivalents S 28119 54,949 37,265

|

Operating Adtivities I

For each of the past three fiscol years, net cash prowded by
operating aclivities has improved significantly, primarily as a
result of improved operating results driven by increased demdnd
for our products. In general, the growth in our operating assefs
and liabilities has coincided with the profitable growth in our
business. Accounts receivable increased $10,086, $29, g593
and $40,213 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005
and 2006, respedively, primarily due to the overall growth in
our revenue. In 2004, our balance of deposits and other ussefs
increased $8,711 primarily due to payments for third p_udy
content for our dotabase. Accounts payable increased $6,057
during the year ended December 31, 2005 primarily due to
expenses incurred related to the growth of our operations and
the timing of the related payments. Accrued payroll and related
liabilities increased $6,536 during 2004 primarily due to ?The
accrual of onnual employee compensation programs that were
paid in the first quarter of 2005. Deferred revenue ancrecsed
$14,431 during 2004 primarily due to a $30,000 prepoyment
by a-customer as described in the following paragraph, of‘Fse? by
revenue recognized.

The $30,000 payment was the result of an agreement thai
we entered into with a customer during the first quarter of 2004
whereby the customer agreed to prepay $30,000. The customer
may apply a portion of the prepayment for license fees due to
us in any calendar year under the agreement. In the event ihe
prepayment is not fully exhausted by the end of calendar yecr
2009, the customer may extend the term of the agreement to
the end of calendar year 2010. The prepayment was initially
recorded os deferred revenue and will be recognized according
to our revenue recognition. policy as we receive royalty reports
from the customer evidencing their use of the prepaid licenses.
The amount of recognition for prepaid licenses was Iumned to
510,000 each fiscal yeor for 2004, 2005 and 2006. With resped
to the prepoyment, we have no obligation 1o refund any unused
amounts nor are there any restrictions on the nature or hmlng of
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our use of the cash received. The $30,000 prepayment in 2004
was completely utilized by the customer as of December 31, 2006.
In addition, the customer had on obligation to vs of $20,000
that was paid in January 2007 relaled to license fees in 2007
and 2008, which has not been reflected in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities hos primarily consisted of
capitalized costs related to software developed for internal use,
amounts placed on deposit with Philips, purchases of marketable
securities, capital expenditures and acquisitions. We experienced
temporary excess funds that were provided from, operations for
2004, 2005 and 2006. We put those funds on deposit with
Philips until August 11, 2004, since which we have invested such
funds in cash equivalents and moarketable securities. For the year
ended December 31, 2004, net deposits decreased by $65,199
because the reloted deposit agreements with Philips expired upon
completion of our initial public offering. Upon expiration of these
deposit agreements, we invested cash balonces in excess of our
short-term operational needs in cash equivalents and marketable
securities. During 2004, 2005 and 2006, we invested $73,166,
$62,260 and $45,408, respectively, in marketable securities.

In 2005, we paid $8,234, net of the cash received, for the
acquisition of our Korean subsidiary. In 2006, we paid $42,216,
net of the cash received, for the acquisitions of The Mop Network,
Inc. and a digital mapping business from gedas Mexico, S.A, de
CV. : .

Costs for software developed for internal use have been
capitalized in accordance with SOP 98-1 and are related to
applications used internally to improve the effectiveness of
database creation and vpdating activities, enhancements to
internal applications that enable our core dolobase to operate
with emerging technologies and applications to facilitate usage
of our map dotabase by customers. Capitalized costs totaled
$12,792, $12,36%9 and $9,055 for 2004, 2005, and 2006,
respectively. We expect the capitalized costs related to software
developed for internal use to be approximately $15,000 to
$17,000 in 2007.

We have continued to invest in properly and equipment to meet
the demands of growing our business by expanding our facilities
and providing the necessary infrastructure. Capital expenditures
totaled $12,875, $10,466 and $17,834 during 2004, 2005
and 2006, respectively. We expect capital expenditures to totol
approximately $60,000 in 2007. This higher amount is related
to our move to a new corporale headquarters during 2007 and
funding the capital expenditures of Traffic.com. For purposes of
estimating these future copial expenditures, we hove assumed
that the acquisition will close in early March 2007.

Financing Activities

In April 2004, we declared a special cash dividend of $47,159,
which was paid on June 18, 2004 to our common stockholders of
record as of April 19, 2004, We currenily intend to retain future
earnings, if any, to finance the expansion of our business and do
not expect to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.




Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation 48, "Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Toxes—an interpretation of FASB
Statement 109.” This interpretation clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial
slatemenls in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” This inferprefation prescribes @ recognition
threshold and measurement atiribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected
to be token in o tox return. This interpretation also provides
guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and- transition. This
interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2006. We are still evoluating the effect this interpretation will
have on our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157,
“Fair Yalue Measurements.” This statement defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP
and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements. This
statement applies when other accounting pronouncements require
fair value measurements; it does not require new fair value
measurements. This statement responds to investors’ requests
for expanded information about the extent to which companies
measure assets and liabilities at fair value, the information used
to measure fair volue, and the effed of fair value measurement on
earnings. This statementl is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those years. We
are evaluating the ef‘lfed this siatement will have on our financial
statements. i

o P .
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk

We -invest our cash in highly liquid cash equivalents ond
markelable securities. A percentage point change in interest rates
would result in an approximately $2,000 increase or decrease
to interest income depending on the direction of the interest rate
change. :

Moterial portions of our revenue and expenses have been
generated by our European operations, and we expect that our
European operations will account for a material portion of our
revenue and expenses in the future. In addition, substantially all of
our expenses and revenue related to our international operations
are denominated in foreign currencies, principally the euro.

15




[
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
|

Our managemeni is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequete internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2006 based on criteria established in internal Control—Integrated Framewoerk issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission. As a result of this assessmen’r management concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our internal
control over financial reporting was effective in providing reasonoble assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in _cccordcnce with generally accepted accounting principles. Management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 has been oudited by KPMG LLP
on independery registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing on page 18.

Limitations on Controls

Management does not expect that our disclosure controls cnd procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent
or detect all errars and froud. Any control system, no mcﬂer how well designed and operated, is based upon certain assumptions and
can only provide reasonable, not absclute, assurance That|its objectives will be met. Further, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance thol misstatements due fo error or frcudlwill not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have
been detected.

| 16




The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Report of Independen!t Registered Public Accounting Firm !
|
I
NAVTEQ Corporation:. :

We have audited Ithe accompanying consolidoted balance sheets of NAVIEQ Corpjoruhon and subsidiaries {the Company) as of
December 31, 2005 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stc':ckholders equity and comprehensive income,
ond cosh flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opm‘uon on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits. |

We conducted our oudits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States).
Those standords require that we plan and perform the cudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a fest basis, evidenceiéupporﬁng the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and sngmﬂcanf estimates made by mcncgemenf as
well as evaluating the overall financia! statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fmrlyf in all material respects, the financial position
of NAVTEQ Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, and; 1he results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the yeurs in the three-year period ended December 31, 20054, in conformlfy with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

As discussed in Nofe 1 to the consolidated financial statements, during 2006 the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards!No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounhng Oversight Board {United Stotes), the
effectiveness of NAVTEQ Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting os of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established
in Internal Con’rrol—-lntegroied Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organlzoilons of the Treadway Commission {(COS0),
and our report dated March 1, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on managemem's assessment of, and the effective operation of,
internal control over flncncml reporting. - l

: KPMme| P

Chicago, lllinois 1'
March 1,2007 !
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firn!-m

The Board of Directors and Stockholders |

NAVTEQ Corporation: i

We hove audited management’s assessment, included!in Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting in this
annuol report, that NAVIEQ Corporation (the Company) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Confrol—-lntegrofed Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO). NAVTEQ Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effedweness of internal control over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is to express
an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our cudit. !

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stcndords of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the uu.dn to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective- internal conirol
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an underslanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporfing and the preparation of finoncial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal contrel over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assuronce that 1rcnsudio:ns are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordonce with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unautherized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements. !

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over flncnc:cl reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projeclions
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subfed to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the pohcues or procedures may deteriorate. ’

In our opinion, management's ossessment that NAVTEQ Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criterio established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orguniz'ctions of the Treadway Commission [COSO). Also, in our opinion, NAVTEQ
Corporation maintained, in all material respects, efective mferncl control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on
criterio established in Internal Control—Integrated Frumework issued by the Committee of Sponscring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission {COSO).

We also have oudited, in accordance with the stcndards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of NAVTEQ Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehénsive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2006, and our report dated March 1, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financiol

statements. I
KPMe P

Chicago, lilinois
March 1, 2007
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NAVTEQ Corporation and Subsidiaries Il
Consolidated Bolance Sheets
{n thousands, except pér share amounts)
December 31, December 31,
2005 | 2006
Asses ‘
Cusrent assefs: !
{ash and cosh equivalents ) 35,03'01 122,335
Shart-term marketable securities 84,299 137,163
Accounts receivoble, net of ollowance for doubthul accounts E

of $4,852 and $6,637 in 2005 and 2006, respectively 82,352 126,081
Defarred income taxes, net 42,584] 9232
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 15,203 17,744
Total current assets | 309,508 412555

Property and equipment, net 20,628 27 462
(opitalized software development costs, net 25,761 18,844
Long-term deferred income tozes, net 169,264 187,31
Long-term marketable securities 49,429, 63,033
Acquired intongible assets, net 14,815 27035
Goodwil i 1,778 45,779
Deposits ond other ossefs 12,505 12,602
Total assets \ $ 615,888 794,701
L I
Liohilities and Stockholders’ Equity i
Current liabilifies: ; i
Accounts poyabla i S 19572 22,874
Acerued payroll and reloted liabilities 28,345 33,571
Fair value of derivative 3,245 —
Other occrued expenses | 28,658 40,327
Deferred revenue ‘ 38,703 43,639
Total current iabilities 118,563 ! 140,411
Long-term deferred revenve J 448 2874
Other long-term ligbilities 3815 2,035
Total liabilities | 125,824 145,320
Stockhalders' equity: i '
(ommon stock, 50.001 par value; 400,000 shares autherized; 92,086 ond ,

93,560 shares issued and outstonding in 2005 and 2008, respectively 92 iz}
Additionol poid-in copital ! 822,35 853,197
Deferred compensation expense (9,096} —
Accunuloted other comprghensive foss: |

Cumulative translation adjustment {25,890} 1 (17,486)

Unreolized holding goin {Joss) on avalable-far-sale marketable securities, net of ta {514), 490
Totol accumulated other comprehensive loss (26,404} {16,996}
Accurmutated defici i (296,884) ‘ {186,914)
Total stockholders” equity 490,054 :‘ 649,38}

Total libilities and stockholders”, equity $ 615,888 | 794,701

See accompanying notes to consolidated finoncial statements.
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MNAVTEQ Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,
‘ 2004 2005 2006
Net ievenue | § 392,858 494,512 581,619
Operating costs ond expenses: ! .
Database creation and distribution costs | 197,089 234,405 275,449
Selling, general and odministrative expenses ’ 101,183 125,851 152,474
Total operating costs and expenses ! 298,271 362,256 427,923
Qperating income i 94,586 134,256 153,6%6
Other income (expense): |
Intergst income, net ' 1,134 4,237 11,257
Fareign currency guin {foss) ; (1,686} 502 (984)
Othes expense | (206) # {24)
Income before income taxes 1’ 93,828 138,991 163,945
Income tax (benefit) expense i 39,762 (31,839) 54 481
Net income before cumulative effedt of change in occounting principle ; 54,066 170,830 109,464
Cummulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of income tax of $312 | — — 504
Net income \ S 54,066 170,830 109,570
Earnings per share of common stock before cumulative effect of change in accounting printiple:[
Basic | $ 042 1.90 1.18
Diluted | b 0.5% 181 1.14
{umulative effact of chonge in accounting principta per share of cammon stock: |
Basic : ) — — om
Diluted § — — 0.01
Earnings per share of common stock: |
Basic | $ 08l 1.90 1.18
Diluted ! $ 0% 181 115
Weighted avesage shares of common stock outstanding: i
Busic | 86,509 90,115 93,029
Dituted 92,001 94,198 95,713

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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NAVTEQ Cerporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated S\‘méments of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

{In thousands) i

Acumulated
Additional Note Deferred other Total
{ Comman stack paid-in receivable for  compensation  comprehensive  Accumulated stockholders’
j Shares Amount wopital tommon stock exﬁ"ense income (loss) deficit equity
Bolonces as of December 31, 2003 84,153 § 1,78 767,709 (19) (3:332) (26,645} (521,780) 27,9
Brercise of womants ‘ 3,384 47 477 — —_ — — 474
Rewerse stock split — {1,140 1,140 — — — — —
Exarcise of stock aptions ‘ 215 3 2533 — — — — 2,534
Dividends paid — — (47,159) — — — - (47,159)
Stock compensation expense |- — — 17,087 — (10,071) — — 7016
Settlement of note receivable |,
for comman stock ; ) — (289) 219 —_ — — {70)
{omprehensive income: {
Foreign currency translation odjustment — — —_ — — (1,856) — (1,858)
Unrealized holding loss an availoble-
for-sale marketable securities
{net of toxes of 561) ! — — — — — (98) — (98)
Net income [ — — — — — — 54,066 54,066
Tetal comprehensive income ' i 32,110
Balantes as of December .':ll, 2004 B7.741 88 741,448 — (12,'403) {28.601) (467.114) 232818
Common stock issued for ucqu;i;iriun 545 ] 19,976 — — — — 1w
Exexcise af stock options and |,
vesting of restricted stock units 3,800 3 55,122 — — — — 55,125
Stack compansation expense 1 — — 5810 — 3,307 - — g7
_ Comprehensive income: -
Foreign currency kranslation adjusiment — — — — — 2613 — 2,613
Unrealized holding loss an available-
for-sale markefable securifies
{net of toxes of 5256} — — — — — (416) — (416)
Net incama ‘ — — e — — — 170,830 170,830
Totul comprehensive income I 173,027
Balances as of Decembar 31, 2005 92,086 9 822,356 — ($,096) (26,404) (296,884) 490,064
Exescise of stack options and i
vesting of restricted stock ulnits 1,474 ? 26,254 — — — — 26,256
Stock compensation expense | — — 14,501 — I— — — 14,501
Cumulative effect of change | '
in accounting principle ! — — {818) — — — — (818)
Reversal of deferred compensation
balance upon adaption of SFAS 123R — — {9,096) — 9,096 — — —
Comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translofion adjustment — — — — — 8,404 — 8,404
Unrealized holding goin on ovaileble-
for-sale morketable securities
(net of taxes of 5623) | — — — — |— 1,004 — 1,004
Het income I — — — — Ll — 109,970 109,970
Total comprehensive ircome | 119,378
Balances as of December 31, 2006 93,560 5 9 853,197 — |— {16,996) (186,914) 649,381

| .
See accomponying noles to consofidated financial statements.
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NAVTEQ Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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i Years Ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006
Cash fiows from operating adiviies: ’
Net income S 54066 170,830 109,970
Adjuétments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: |
(umulative effect of change in occounting principle l — — {506)
Deferred income toxes } " 31,841 (77.737) 15,046
Degrecintion and cmortization | 6,414 8,717 11,683
Amaortization of sofiwara davelopment tosts ‘ 9,154 12,851 14,460
Amortization of acquired infangible ossets : — 1,502 3,577
(Guin) loss on foreign currency derivatives I 1,304 (660) (234)
P'mvisinn for {recovery of) bad debts 1 {461) 2,303 2,548
Stack compensation expense | 7.016 9117 14,501
Tax benefit on non-qualified stock options | 1,547 40,936 —
Nancash other l 308 1,804 1,449
Changes in operating assets and liobilities, net of effac of acquisifians: : ) ( ) : )
Accounts receivable 10,084 29,693 40,13
Prepaid expenses ond other current essets | {1,705) {5,006) (1.577)
[ieposits and other nssets {8,711) {1,483) 904
hecounts payoble {2,198) 6,057 1,612
Accrued poyroll and related Tiabilities 6,536 2,100 3215
Other accrued expenses } (3,443) (3,576) 5120
Dpferred fevenue 14,431 {823) 564
Qsher long-term liabilities 407 514 (2,091
N;ei tosh provided by operafing octivities 106,422 137.753 140,008
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property ond equipment | {12,875} {10,466) (17,834)
Copitclized sofiware development costs | (12.79%) (12,369) {9,055)
Puschoses of marketcble securities ‘ {118,100) (198,743) (327,470)
Sales of marketable securities | 44934 134,483 262,062
Purchose of investments — (1,201} —
Payment for acquisition, ret of cosh otquired ] — (6,234) {42,216}
Inveérmem in joint venture I {450 — —
Note receivoble ! — — (300)
Cash on depasit with offilinte, net f 65,199 — —
Net cosh used in investing activities | (34.124) (94,530} (134.813)
{ash flows from financing activifies: l
Issuan¢e of common stock and related tax benefits ] 1,393 14,190 26,256
Dividends poid | (47.159) — —
Net cosh provided by (used in} finoncing activities ' (45,768) 14,190 26,256
Effect of exchange rate chonges on cash l 1,587 (2,444) 5,814
Ket increase in cash ond cash equivalents ; 19 54,969 37,265
Cash ond cash equivalents ot beginming of year | 1,982 30,101 85,070
Cash ond cosh equivalents ot end of year f % 30Im 85,070 122,335
Supplemental disclosure of cosh flow information: ‘
Cash poid during the yeor for in‘erest I 5 24 M 12
Cash paid during the yaar for income toxes | § 259 1,425 8,734
Non-cash transadtions: I
Valug of common stock issued in connecfion with acquisition | § —_ 19977 —
Intongible assets acquired in non-cash exchanges ‘ S — — 3,333
|
|
|
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

[Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

(1)—Description of the Business and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{(a) The Business |

NAVTEQ Corporation (“the Company”} is a leading provider of
digital map infermation and related software and services used
in o wide range of navigation, mapping and geographic-related
applications, including products and services that provide maps,
driving directions, turn-by-turn route guidance, fleet management
and tracking and geographic information systerns. These products
ond services are provided to end users by our customers on various
platforms, including: self-contained hardware and software
systems installed in vehicles; persona! computing devices, such as
personal navigation devices (PNDs} and mobile phones; server-
based systems, including Internet and wireless services; and paper
media.

The Company is engaged primarily in the creation, updating,
enhancing, licensing and distribution of its database for North
America and Eurepe. The Company’s database is a digital
representotion of road transporation networks constructed to
provide a high level of accuracy ond the useful level of detail
necessary to support route guidance products and similar
applications. The Company’s dotabase is licensed to leading
automotive electronics manufacturers, automotive manufaciurers
ond dealers, mobile navigation device manufacturers, developers
of advanced transportation applications, developers of geographic-
based information products and services, locotion-based service
providers and other product and service providers. The Company
is currently realizing revenue primarily from license fees charged
to customers who incorporate the Company’s database into their
products or services.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying' consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Compony and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All
significant mtercompcny accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation,

i
{c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally occepted in the United States
of America (GAAP) requires monagement to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities ot the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulls
could differ from ﬂ]‘ose estimates.

{d) Cosh Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. !

(e} Marketable Securities

The Company invests in marketable securities and classifies
the securities as available-for-sale under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (SFAS} No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” in accordance
with SFAS 115, available-for-sale marketable securities are
accounted for at market prices, with the unrealized gain or loss,
less applicable deferred income taxes, shown as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity.
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{f) Accounts Rec]:lervuble

Accounts receivable are recorded af the invoiced amounts and do
not bear interest! The allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded
to provide for” estimaoted losses resulting from uncollectible
accounts, and is based principally upon specifically identified
amounts where |collection is deemed doubtful. Additiona!l non-
specific allowances ore recorded based on historical experience
and manugemém‘ s assessment of a variety of factors related
to the general|financial condition and business prospects of
the Company’s customer base. The Company reviews the
colledlibility of m'dwuduul accounts and assesses the adequacy of
the allowance for doubtful accounts monthly. Account balances
are charged off cgumsi the allowance after all means of collection
have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered
remote. The Colrnpcmy does not have any off-balance-sheet credit
exposure relcned to its customers.

{9) Foir Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash equivalents, caosh on deposit with
aoffiliate, receivables, poyobles and accrued expenses approximate
their fair vuluesldue to the short maturity of these instrurments,

{(h) Property ond Equipment

Property and equupmem‘ are stated at cost. Depreciation and
amertization are computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Computers and equipment and
purchased soﬁwore are aomortized over three years. Furniture and
fixtures are omorhzed aver five years. Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the lesser of their estimated useful lives or the

remaining lease|terms.
|

(i) Derivatives |

The Company Used a derivalive financial instrument to manage
foreign curren¢iy exchonge rate risk. Derivative instruments
were stated at four value in the consolidated balance sheet. The
Company did no’r designate the derivative as a hedge as defined
by SFAS No. ]33 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” Therefore, the changes in foir value of the
derivative were' recognized in the consolidated statements of
operations,

(i) Revenue Recognmon

Revenue is recogmzed when evidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery has occurred the fee is fixed or determinable and
collection is probcble, following the guidance in Securities and
Exchange Commnssuon (SEC} Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB)
104, "Revenue Recogmhon Where arrangements have multiple
elements, the ]Compcny applies the guidance prescribed by
Emerging Issues Tosk Force (EITF} Issue No. 00-21, “Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.”

The Compgny derives a substantial majority of its revenue
from licensing ||its dotabase. Revenue is recognized net of
provisions for estlmufed uncollectible amounts and anticipated
returns, Dntabose ||censmg revenue includes revenue associated
with nonrefundoble minimum licensing fees, license fees from
usage (lncludlng license fees in excess of nonrefundable minimum
fees), prepoid licensing fees from distributors and customers
and direct sales to end users. License fees from usoge (including
license fees in|excess of nonrefundoble minimum fees) are
recognized in thle period in which the customer reporis them to the
Company. Nonrefundoble minimum licensing fees are recognized
as revenue rah:lbly over the period of the arrangement, until
such time thot Iéumulahve license fees from usage exceeds the
nonrefundable minimum licensing fee. At that time, the Company
recognizes fheladdmonal licensing revenue. Prepaid licensing

1
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! |
fees are recognized in the period in which the distributor;or
customer reports that they have shipped the database to the end
user. Revenue for direct sales of licenses is recognized when the
dolabase is shipped to the end user. Licensing arrangements
that entitle the customer to unspecified updates over a period of
time are recognized as revenue ratably over the period of the
arrangement. :
(k} Database Creation and Distribution Costs ]
Dotabase creation ond distribution costs include the cosfs
of duotabase creation and updating, dotabase licensing cnd
distribution, and doatobase-reloted  software deveiopment
Datobase creation and updating costs of $93,156, $115, 278
and $146,245 in 2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively, include
the direct costs of dotabase creafion and validation, costs! to
obiain information used to construct the dotabase and ongoing
costs for updating and enhancing the database content. Dotcbclxse
creation and updating costs are expensed as incurred, except
costs of internal-use software, which are capitalized in accordance
with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA}
Statement of Position No. 98-1 {SOP 98-1), "Accounting for !he
Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal
Use,” and are then amortized on a siraight-line basis over their
estimated useful life, generally three years. !

Dotabase licensing ond distribution costs of 380, 3‘26
$101,574 and $104,758 in 2004, 2005, and 2006, respechvely,
include direct costs related to reproduction of the datobase for
licensing, professional services, and per copy sales (including
shipping and handling costs of $5,351, $5,932 and $6,711|in
2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively). Database licensing and
distribution costs are expensed as incurred.

Databose-related  software development costs con5|st
primarily of costs for the development of software as foilows
(i} applications used internally fo improve the effectiveness| of
database creation and updating activities, (i) enhancements: to
internal applications that enable the Company’s core datobase
to operate with emerging technologies, and {iii) applications' to
facilitate usage of the Company’s map dotobose by customers.
Costs of internal-use software are accounted for in accordance
with SOP 98-1. Accordingly, certain application development
costs relating to internal-use software have been copitalized and
are being amortized on o straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the ossets, generclly three to four years. The
Compony copitalized $12,792, $12,369 and $9,055 of internal-
use software development costs during 2004, 2005, and 20(_)6
respeclively. Included in database licensing and distribution costs
is the amortization of internal-use software costs of $9,154,
$12,851 and $14,480 for the years ended December 31
2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively. Software development und
maintenance costs of $23,607, $19,553 and $24,446 in 20()4
2005, and 2006, respectively, did not qualify for capitalization
and were expensed as incurred. I
{l} Income Taxes
Income toxes are accounted for under the asset and liability
method. Deferred tax ossets and liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to differences be'rween
the financial statement carrying omounts of existing assets cmd
liobilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss qnd
tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tox assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply 1o taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tox
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rales is recognizedi in
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operafions in the period that includes the enactment date. A
valuation allowance is recorded for deferred tax assets if it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized.

{m) Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries
are measured using the local currency as the functional currency.
Foreign assets and liahilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets have been translated at the rate of exchonge as of
the balance sheet dale. Revenue and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rote for the year. Translation adjustments
are reported as o component of accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss} in stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency transaction
gains and losses are included in the consolidated statements of
operations.

{n} Impairment of Long-lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in accordance with
the provisions of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or
Disposal of Long-lived Assets.” In accordonce with SFAS No.
144, long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment,
capitalized software development costs and intangibles subject
to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate thot the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held
and used is measured by o comparison of the carrying amount
of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is
recognized equal to the amount by which the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed
of would be separately presented in the consolidated balance
sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair
value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated.

{o) Stock-Based Compensation

In 2004 and 2005, the Company applied the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Board
{APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,”
and related interpretations, including Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting
for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation, an
interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25,” to account for its fixed
plan stock options. Under this method, compensation expense is
recorded on the date of grant only if the fair value of the underlying
common stock exceeds the exercise price of the option.

On Jonuary 1, 2006, the Company adopted Finoncial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards {SFAS) No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.”
SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes SFAS No. 123 and Accounting
Principles Board (APB} Qpinion No. 25 and requires all share-
based poyments to employees, including grants of employee
stock options, to be recognized as an operating expense in the
income statement. The cost will be recognized over the requisite
service period based on fair values measured on grant dates.
The Company odopted the new standord using the medified
prospective transition method. Accordingly, expense required
under SFAS 123(R} hos been recorded beginning lanuary 1,
2006. As allowed by SFAS No. 123, the Company has elected to
continue to apply the intrinsic value-based method of accounting
described above and has furnished the pro forma disclosures
required by SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation—Transition and




Disclosure.” The compensation expense for stock options included
in the pro forma disclosures is recognized ratably over the vesting
periods of each tranche of the stock options. See Footnote 8 to
our consolidoted financial statements for the disclosures related
to SFAS No. 123(R).

{p) Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accumuloted other comprehensive loss is related 1o the Company’s
foreign currency tramslation adjustments and unrealized holding
gains and (losses) on available-for-sale marketable securities.

{q) Earnings Per Share
Basic and diluted earnings per share is computed based on net
income, divided by the weighted-average number of shares of
common stock and dilutive common stock equivalents cutstanding
for the period, in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per
Share.”

The following table sets forth the computation of earnings per
share for the years ended December 31:

2004 2005 2006

Numerotor:
Net income before cumulative effect
of chonge in accounting principle S 54066 170,830 109,464
(umulativa effact of chonge
in accounting principle — — 506

Net incoma after cumulotive change
in accounting prindiple’ § 54,066 170,830 109,570

Denomninator: ;
Dencminotor for basic earnings
per share-—weighted-gverage
shares outstonding 85,509 90,115 93,029
Effect of dilutive securifies:
Employes stock options 4238 m 2,373

Restiicted sock units 13 360 m
Worrants 1,123 — —
Denominator for diluted eamings

per share—weig hted-overage shores
outstanding and assumed conversions 92,001 94198 95,713

Earnings per share of comman steck
befora cumuative effact of change
in accounting principle: i

Basic : S 042 1.90 1.18

Diluted f S 059 1.81 114
Qumulative effect of change in

accounting principle per share:

Bosic S — — oo

Diluted ) — - 0.01
Easnings per share: )

Besic S 042 1.90 118

Diluted : § 059 1.81 115

Options to pu‘Irchose 4, 36, and 1,321 shares of common
stock were outstanding ot December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006,
respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per shnrefbecause the effect would be antidilutive.
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{r) Recl'ass:ﬁcuﬂitlms

Certain 2004 dnd 2005 amounis in the consolidated financial
slatements hov'ela been reclassified to conform to the 20046
presentation. The reclassification wos primarily reloted to certain
expenses reclc's’af:ed to “Database creation and distribution
costs” that had prevrously been reported in “Selling, general, and
administrative expenses

{s) Recent Accoummg Pronouncements -

In July 2006, tha FASB issued FASB Interpretation 48, “Accounting
for Uncer?cun'ry| in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB
Statement 109.7 This interpretation clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial
statements in c‘uccordcnce with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Toxes.”| This inferpretation prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement oftribute for the financial stotement
recognition and measurement of o tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tox return. This interpretation also provides guidance
on derecognmo'r]\ classification, interest and penalties, accounting
in interim penods, disclosure, and transition. This interpretation is
effective for flsccxl years beginning after December 15, 2006. The
Company is 51||| evaluating the effect this interpretation will have
on the Company s financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value
Measurements.”] This statement defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring foir valve in GAAP and enhances
disclosures abouf fair value measurements. This staterment
applies when other accounting pronouncements require fair value
measurements; it does not require new fair value measurements.
This statement|responds to investors’ requests for expanded
information about the extent to which companies measure assets
and liabilities ui: fair volue, the information used to measure fair
value, and the effed of foir value measurement on earnings. This
statement is effedwe for fiscal years beginning after November
15, 2007 and interim periods within those years. The Company
is evaluating ﬂ'lé1 effect this statement will have on the Company's
financial statements.

{2)—Marketable Securities

At December 3] 2005 and 2006, available-for-sale marketable
securities conmsted of the following:

Amortized  Unrealized Morke!

2005 Cost Loss Volue
Short-ferm marketoble securities:

Proferred stock | § 2150 — 2150

1i.5. Government un('} agency securities 13,500 {170) 13,330

Municipel bonds ; 49,150 — 49,150

{orporate bonds end notes 19,862 {193} 19,669

Tatal short-term r'ﬁmkemble securities 84,662 (363) 84,299

Long-term markatable securmes

Corporate bands and notes 20,433 (227} - 20,206
us. Govemmemund*agenw sequrities 29,465 (242) 918
Total long-term n:whrketubla securifies 49,898 (469) 49,429

| $ 134560 (832) 133,728




|

_ Amortized  Unrealized Market |
006 Cost {Loss) / Gain ~ Volve |
Shori-term morketable securities: I
Prefsired stock § 17975 —f— 17,975
U.S. Govemment and agency securifies 29472 21/ — 29,351 |
Municipal bonds 68,900 —/— 68,900 !
Cotporcte bends and notes 19,987 (48)/ — 19,939 :
Certificate of deposit 99¢ (y/— 998 |
Total shori-term marketable secutities 137,333 (10)/— 137163
Long-term marketoble securifies: |
Coporate bonds and notes 45,890 (18)/ — 45,872
(ommon stock 2000 . —/9%  29%|
U.S. Government ond ogency securities 14,179 (91715 14,185 |
Total long-ferm morketable securities 62,069 /M 63,033 |
$ 199407 (197)/991 200191

The Company’s marketable securities consist of rnorketcble
securifies of high credit quality and have eontractual moiurmes of
up to thirty-nine years.

Other-than-temporary |mpc|rments are recognized if the
market value of the investment is below its cost basis for ian
extended period of fime or the issuer has experienced significant
finoncial declines or difficulties in raising capital to coniiriue
operations. There were no other-than-temporary impairments for
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006. As of December
31, 2005 and 2006, $515 and $26é of the unrealized loss was
related to marketable securities that had a loss for less than
twelve months. The remaining $317 and $171 of the unrealized
loss as of December 31, 2005 ond 2006, respectively, was
related to marketable securities that had a loss for greater 1han
twelve months, \

\
(3}—Property and Equipment !

The componenis of the Company's property and equipment as of

December 31, 2005 and 2006 are as follows: ‘

|
!
k

2005 2006

Computers and equipment S 31,057 38,71

Furniture and fixtures 3775 5019
Purchased saftware 12,397 17,668 i
Leosehold improvements 5,461 147
52,690 68545 |
Less ercumulated deprecintion ond omoitization {31,842) {41,083) |
S 20828 27462 |

I
{4)—Deferred Revenue I
During the first quarter of 2004, the Company eniered inlc!; a
five-yeor license ogreement to provide map database mformchon
fo a customer. Under the license aogreement, the customer pmd
$30,000 during the second quarter of 2004 reloted 1o license fees
for the first three years of the agreement. The customer can use
up to $10,000 of the credits in each of 2004, 2005 and 2006.
As of December 31, 2005, $10,000 remained in the balance
of short-term deferred revenue related to this agreement. These
credits had been completely used by the customer as of December
31, 2006. In addition, the customer had an obligation to the
Company of $20,000 that was poid in January 2007 relutedl to
license fees in 2007 and 2008, which hos not been reflected in
the accompanying consolidoted balance sheets. |

|
|
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{5)—Line of Credit

On November 30, 2006, the Company extended through its
operating subsidiary for North America, its revolving line of credit
that was scheduled to mature on December 1, 2006. Pursuant
to the terms of the line of credit, the Company may borrow up
to $50,000 at an interest rate of either U.S. LIBOR plus 0.5%
or the greater of the prime rate or the Federal funds rafe plus
0.5%. The Company is required o pay to the bank a quarterly
facility fee of 7.5 basis points per annum on the averoge daily
vnused commiiment. The Company has guaranteed its operating
subsidiary’s obligations under this facility. As of December 31,
2006, there were no ouistanding borrowings agatnst this line of
credit. This line of credit expires on December 1, 2007.

{6)—Income Taxes

The domestic and foreign components of pretax income for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006 are as
follows:

2004 2005 2006

Domestic S INé 32,939 35,607
Foreign - 91,112 106,052 128,338
Income befare income taxes S 93878 138,991 143,945

The current and deferred components of income tax expense
(benefit] for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005, and
2006 are as follows:

2004 2005 2006
Current:
Fedeal 5 123 — {20)
State 89 n —
Forsiga 1877 1,871 24394
Total cument 2,089 1,892 24,374
Deferred:
Federcl (692) (63,699) 13,397
State (147) {6,455) 1,950
Foteign 38,512 36,423 14,765
Tatal deferred 37673 (33,731} 30,107
Income tax expense (henefit} S 39762 (31,839} 54,481




Total income tax expense (benefit) differed from the amount
computed by opplying the U.S. Federa! statutory tox rate of 35%
to income before income taxes for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively, due to the following:

2004 005 2006

Tox expense af DS, Federol stotutoryrate $ 32,83 48,647 57,386
State fax expense, !

net of Federal tax effea 78 1,053 1,267
Foreign withholding tox,

net of Federol fox effect 444 — —
Deferred compensation — 3347 968
Impadt of foreign rates (328) {4,367) {5,958)
Impact of odjusiments to defened toxes

due to changes in statutory tox rotes 384 720 (390}
Increase {decrease) in voluation ollowonce (24) {83,290) 204
Other i : 2,927 2,046 980
Income fix expense (benefit), $ M7 (31839 54480

Deferred tax c:fsseis and ligbilities as of December 31, 2005
and 2006 are summarized as follows:

1
1

2005 2006
Deferred tox ossets: '
Cumant: i
Het operating loss cu:rvfurwurds S 22381 54
Deferred revenve - 9264 6,165
Inerest not curtenily deductible 51 54
Other deductible temposory differences 5357 3,405
Torol cureent deferred tox assets 42,995 9,678
Non-cument: '
Research and development
credit camforwards 6,373 6,373
Interest not currently deductible 7. 78,564
Net operating loss camyforwards 91,093 107,670
Stock compensation ! 1,978 4,676
Deferred revenue ; 1,14 815
Other deductible tempdrary diffarences 1926 1,940
Total non-current defer?ed tax ossefs 180,822 200,058
Gross deferred tax :ussets 123,817 209,736
Less valuafion ollowance {2,728) {(2.439)
Net deferred tuét assefs 121,089 207,297
Deferred ox linkilities: '
Current: !
Other deductible temporary differences {182} (351)
Totol cwrrent deferred tox liabilities {182) (351}
Non-current: '
Acquired intangible ossets (5194} - {7,675}
Capitolized softwore development costs, net {3,865) {2,648)
Total non-current deferced tax liobilities (9,059} (10,323)
Gross deferred tox liobilities (9.241) (10,674)
Deferred income taxes § 211,848 196,423

During 2006, the deferred tax asset valuation ollowance
decreased $289 consisling of a decrease of $495 for expired
Canada and state net operating losses, offset by an increase of
$206 for Federal qnd state credit carryforwards.

A
i
l

In accordc!lnce with APB Opinion No. 23, "Accounting for
Income Tcxes—Specnal Areos,” and SFAS No. 109, the Company
hos not prowded for US. or foreign income taxes related to
approximately 576 630 of undistribuled earnings from its foreign
operations at December 31, 2006, as the Company considers
these earnings 10 be permanently reinvested. Determination of the
odditional income faxes and applicable withholding that would
be payable on|1he remittance of such undistributed earnings is
not prochcoblelbecause such liability, if any, is dependent upon
circumstances exrslmg if and when the Company no longer
considers all or a portion of such undistributed earnings 1o be
permaonently relnvesied

In assessmg the realizability of deferred tax assets,
management cc‘:nmders whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tox assets will not be realized. The
ultimate recllzchon of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
those temporoﬁ differences become deductible. Manogement
considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities,
projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in
making this csséssmem

Prior to 2003 the Company had provided a voluation
allowance for 1he entire balance of deferred tox-assets due to the
uncertainty of generchng future taxable income that would allow
for the reollzchon of such deferred tox assets. During 2003, the
Company mude the determination that it was more likely than
not that it would be able to realize the benefits of the deferred
tax assets relufed to net operating loss carryforwards and other
temporary liems in Europe and North America. In reaching
the de!ermmchon the Company considered both positive and
negative evudence Positive evidence included the Compaony’s
strong recent Irevenue growth ond operating performance,
expeciations regardlng the generation of future taxable income,
the length of ovcllcble carryforward periods, the Company’s
market position ‘and the expected growth of the market. Negative
evidence |nc|uded the Company’s history of operating losses
through 2001 and the likelihood of increased competition and
loss of a 5|gn|flléant customer. From that analysis, the Company
determined that|sufficient evidence existed to conclude that it was
more likely thcn not that the benefits of certain of the deferred
tax assets will be realized, Accordingly, the Company reversed
the related vcluuhon allowance resulting in the recognition of a
deferred i mcome tax benefit of $168,752.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had U.S. inlerest
expense carry'forwards for both Federal and state income tax
purposes of cpproxlmofely $205,328. As of December 31, 2003,
the Company hud fully reserved for the tax benefits related to
the interest expense carryforwards as management believed it
was more I|I<ely|fhon not that the benefits would net be realized.
Al such time, the Company believed it was more likely than
not that the Co:mpony would not realize the benefit associated
with the mterest expense carryforwards due to (1) restrictions
placed on the dedudlblllfy of the interest as a result of Philips
Consumer Eledromcs B.M's {"Philips B.V."} controlling interest in
the Company und (2) uncertainty about the Company’s ability
to generate suf'flaenf incremental future taxable income in the
United States io offset the additiona! interest expense deductions.
During the thlrd quarter of 2004, Philips B.V. relinquished its
controlling interest in the Company following the initial public
offering. As a result, the Company is now allowed to deduct the
deferred inferesla‘ expense in tandem with the net operating loss
carryforwards. Folfownng the initial public offering, the Company
reevaluated wheiher it is more likely than not that the tax benefits
associated with Ithe U.S. net operating loss carryforwards together




with the interest expense carryforwards will be realized. Bosed
on that evaluation, the Company concluded that the recorded
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets reflected the amoum‘
that management believes is more likely than not to expire before
realization and, accordingly, thot no adjustment to the boionce of
the related valuation allowance was required.

During the third quarter of 2005, the Company made ihe
determination that it was more likely than not that it would be
able to realize the benefils of the deferred tax assets related to the
oforementioned net operaling loss carryforwards and deferrled
interest credits in the United Stotes. In reaching the determination,
the Company considered both positive and negative ewdence
Positive evidence included the Company’s strong recent revenue
growth and operating performance, expectations regarding 1he
generation of fulure taxable income, the length of cvmlable
carryforward periods, the Company’s market position and the
expected growth of the markel. Negative evidence included !he
Company’s history of operating losses through 2001 and the
likelihood of increased competition and loss of a significant
customer. From that analysis, the Company determined 1h0t
sufficient evidence existed to conclude that it was more likely than
not that the benefits of certain of the deferred tax assets will be
realized. Accordingly, the Company reversed the related vc:luch.on
allowance and recorded an income tax benefit of $83,270. As of
December 31, 2006, the Compony had a valuation allowance for
deferred tox assets of $2,439 related to Canadion net operating
loss carryforwards and research and experimental tax credits. 1

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had net operating
loss carryforwards for U.S. Federal and state income tox purposes
of approximately $294,691 ond $127,370, respectively. The
difference between the U.S. Federal loss carryforwards and
the state loss carryforwards results primarily from o 50%
limitation on Celifornia loss carryforwards, capitalized resecrch
and development costs for California tax purposes, and a flve-
yeor limit on California net operafing loss carryforwards. As! of
December 31, 2006, the Company also had net operating Ioss
carryforwards in Conada of approximately $1,103. If not utilized,
these carryforwards will expire in 2007. I

The Company also has available tax credit ccrryfowvurds of
approximately $4,443 and $1,930 for U.5. Federal and state tax
purposes, respectively. j

if not utilized, U.S. Federal and state net operating Ioss
carryforwards expire through 2024 and U.S. Federal tax credit
carryforwards expire through 2022, as follows:

Federal net State nel Federal :

. operating loss ~ operating loss tox credit |

Yeor of expiration armyforwards  corryforwards corrylorwards

2007 $ — 704 152 |

2008 4,039 284 114 |
2009 5715 144 28

2010 %772 706 |

2011 34,609 670 185 |

Thereatter rhmugh 2026 224,556 118,762 3862 |

§ 294491 127,370 4,443 |

There is no expiralion date for state tax credit carryforwards
and U.S. Federal interest expense carryforwards. .
: !
{7)—5Stockholders’ Equity :

In connection with a registration rights agreement between Phlhps
BV and the Company, Philips B.V. exercised its first demond
registration right on April 16, 2004, Pursuant to this request

the Company filed a Registration Statement on Form $-1 (Reg.
No. 333-114637) on April 20, 2004 with the Securities and
Exchange Commission to register the Company’s common stock
in an initial public offering, which became effective on August 5,
2004. The Company’s initial public offering was completed on
August 11, 2004. At closing, the Company's selling stockholders,
Philips B.V. and NavPart | B.Y. ("NovPart 1"}, received all of the
proceeds from the sale of shares in the offering. As of December
31, 2004, Philips B.V. owned 30,521 shares of common stock, or
approximately 34.8%, of the Company. Philips B.V. had certain
call rights with respect to 2,580 shares owned by NavPart Il B.V.
(“NavPart 11"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of NavPart . Philips
B.V. delivered an exercise notice to NavPart | in August 2004 with
respect to the aforementioned shares owned by NavPart Il. The
transfer of these shares was completed in March 2005. Philips’
B.V's ownership, after the transfer of these shares, was 33,101
shares of the Company’s common stock, or approximately
37.7% of the shares ocutstanding. Philips B.V. exercised its second
demand registration right on March 11, 2005. Pursuant to this
request, the Company filed a Registration Statement on Form 5-3
{Reg. No. 333-123628) on March 28, 2005 with the Securities
and Exchange Commission to register the Company’s common
stock held by Philips B.V. in a secondary public offering, which
was consummated on May 10, 2005. The Company’s selling
stockholder, Philips B.Y, received all of the proceeds from the sale
of shares in the offering. In the offering, Philips B.V. sold 33,101
shares of common stock, which represented its entire remaining
inferest in the Company.

In April 2004, the Company declared a special cash dividend
to common stockholders of record as of April 19, 2004 in the
amount of $47,159, which. was poid on June 18, 2004.

On April 27, 2004, the Company’s board of directors and
stockholders approved o reverse split of the Company’s common
stock. The ratio for the reverse split was 1-for-14, as determined
by the Company’s board of directors. The Company amended
its amended and restaled cerificate of incorporation on August
5, 2004 to effect this reverse split and to change the number of
authorized shares of common stock to 400,000. All previously
reported share amounts have been retroactively adjusted to give
effect to the reverse split.

On April 28, 2004, Philips B.V. exercised its warrants 1o
ocquire 3,384 shares of the Company’s common stock at o
purchase price of $0.14 per share. The Company received $474
in proceeds related to the exercise of the worrants. The shares
issued upon exercise of the warrants were not included in Philips’
B.V.'s outstanding common stock for purposes of the special cash
dividend paid to the Company’s stockholders on June 18, 2004,

Deferred Compensation Expense

During 2003, the Company granied stock options to ils employees
where the exercise price was less than the fair value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The grant resulted
in an aggregate measurement of compensafion cost of $3,148,
which will be recognized over the vesting period of the awards.
The Company expensed $792 and $764 of the total measured
compensation cost during 2004 and 2005, respectively. During
2004 and 2005, the Company gronted restricted stock units to
cerain directors and employees. The Company recorded $17,061
ond $5,810 in net deferred compensation and omortized to expense
$6,224 and $8,353 in compensation cost related to the grants in
2004 and 2005, respectively. As of December 31, 2005, deferred
compensation totaling $9,096 remained. In 2006, the Company
reversed the deferred compensation balance in conjunction with
the adopfion of SFAS No. 123{R) “Share-Based Payment.”




|
(8)—Share-Based Payments

On January 1, 200;5, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R).
SFAS No. 123(R) sfupersedes SFAS No. 123 and Accounting
Principles Board (AFB) Opinion No. 25 and requires all shore-
based payments to] employees, including grants of employee
stock options, to be recognized as an operating expense in the
income statement. The cost will be recognized over the requisite
service period based on fair values measured on grant dates.
The Company odobfed the new standard using the modified
prospective transition method. Accordingly, expense required
under SFAS No. 123{R} has been recorded beginning January 1,

2006. In connedlon with the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the
Company recorded C| cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle resulting i m income of $506 (net of income tax expense
of $312). The Compcny also eliminoted the December 37,

2005 balance of deferred compensation of $9,096 by reducing
additional paid-in capnicl

The Comprmy| recognized compensation cost totaling
$7,016, $9,117, ond $14,501 related to its share-based
payment arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006, respectlvely, in the consclidated stctemenfs of
operations. The totll income tax benefit recognized in the income
statement was $871, $1,498, and $3,996 for the years ended
December 31,2004}:2005, and 2006, respectively.

The total i income tox benefit recognized in additional paid in
capital for the years ended December 31, 2005 and December 31,
2006 for share-based payment arrangements was $40,936 and
$23,902, respectively. The Company has elected to use tax low
ordering rules when|calculating the income tox benefit associated
with its share- bcsed payment arrangements. In addition, the
Company elected 10 use the simplified method of calculating the
pool of excess tax benefits available to absorb tox deficiencies
recognized subsequent o the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) as
prescribed by FASB)-Staff Position 123(R})-3, “Transition Election
related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Bosed Payment
Awards.” The Company records the reolized income tox benefits
to fully vested share-based payments os financing activities in the
statement of cash flows. The total compensation cost related to
nonvested awards not yet recognized as of December 31, 2006
was 524,824 and W||| be recognized over a weighted-average
period of 1.29 yeors

In April 1996, 1he Company’s Board of Directors approved
the 1996 Stock Ophon Plan {1996 Plan). The 1996 Plan was
omended and restated by the Cormpany’s Board of Directors
in June 1994, ondlomended in August 2000. The 1996 Plan,
as omended, provides for grants of incentive stock opticns,
nonstatutory stock options, and stock purchase rights to employees
(including employees who are officers) of the Company ond
its subsidiaries; provuded however, that no employee moy be
granted an option for more than 1,429 shares in any one fiscal
year. The 1996 Plan.also provides for grants of nonstatutory stock
options and stock ;‘purchcse rights to consultonts. Stock options
granted under the 1996 Plan prior to August 2000 generally have
10-year terms and vest monthly over 48 menths. Stock options
granted under the {1996 Plon ofter the amendment in August
2000 generolly have 10-year terms and. vest as follows: 25% of
the options granted vest on the first day of the month following the
employee’s date of htre and the remaining options vest monthly in
equal installments over the next 36 months.

In October 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors approved
the 1998 California Stock Option Plan {1998 Plan). The 1998
Plan was amended |in August 2000. The 1998 Plan provides for
grants of incentive stock options, nonstatutory stock options, and
stock purchase rigrlﬂs to employees (including employees who

|
|

. are officers) of th“e Company and its subsidiaries. The 1998 Plan

29

also provides forigrants of nonstatutory stack options and stock
purchase rights fo consultants. Stock options granted under the
1998 Plan prior to August 2000 generally have 10-year terms
and vest monthly, over 48 months. Stock options granted under
the 1998 Plan oﬂer the August 2000 amendment generally have
10-year terms cmd vest as follows: 25% of the options granted vest
on the first day of the month following the anniversary of the date
of grant or the emp!oyee s date of hire and the remaining options
vest monthly in elcl;ucl installments over the next 36 months.

In August 200] the Company’s Board of Directors approved
the 2001 Stock Incentlve Plan (2001 Plan}. The 2001 Plan provides
for grants of incentive stock options, nonstatutory stock options,
and stock purchu"se rights to employees (including employees who
are officers) of the Company and its subsidiaries. The 2001 Plan
also provides tfor| granis of nonstatutory stock options and stock
purchase rights to consultants. Stock options granted under the
2001 Plan prior 1‘0 May 9, 2006 generally had 10-year terms and
vest as follows: 25% of the options granted vest on the anniversary
of the date of grcmt and the remaining options vest monthly in
equal |nstc||ment!s over the next 36 months.

In Februcry 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors
approved the Amended and Restated 2001 Stock Incentive Plan
(2001 Amendedl Plan) (i} to permit compensation payoble to
our named executive officers under the 2001 Amended Plan to
constitute quallfled performance-based compensation” and to
therefore be deducﬂble to the Company without regard to the
limitations |mposed by Section 162{m) of the Internal Revenue
Code, {ii} to I|m|1 the number of shares of our commeon stock
that may be issued under the 2001 Amended Plan in respect of
restricted stock, restricted stock units or other similar “full value”
awards, (iii) to eillmlncte the automatic termination of the 2001
Amended Plan in 2011, {iv) to limit the terms of stock options
ond stock cppre‘dlchon rights granted under the 2001 Amended
Plan to eight yedrs, {v] to prohibit the Company from "repricing”
{without stockholder approval} stock options or stock appreciation
rights granted dnder the 2001 Amended Plan, {vi) to prohibit
the grant of stock options or stock appreciation rights with an
exercise price Ies's than the per share fair market volue of our
common stock dln the date of grant, and (vii} to clarify certain
existing provisions of the 2001 Plan. The Company’s stockholders
approved the 2001 Amended Plan in May 2006. Stock options
granted under the 2001 Amended Plan generally have 8-year
terms and vest dsl follows: 25% of the options grcnied vest on the
anniversary of The date of grant and the remaining options vest
monthly over the next 36 months. The Company has reserved
10,931 shares o‘of common stock for issuance under the 2001
Amended Plan. All options issued under the 2001 Amended Plan
are adjusted prg rato for any stock dividends, stock splits and
reverse stock spllfs

As of December 31, 2006, there were 8,924 shares available
for grant under|[the 2001 Amended Plan, and there were no
shares cvmlcble for grant under the 1996 or 1998 Plans. The
Company has recerved 7,360 and 3,571 shares of common stock
for issuance under the 1996 and 1998 Plans, respectively. All
options issued ur'1der the 1996 and 1998 Plans are adjusted pro
rata for any stock dividends, stock splits and reverse stock splits.

Stock Options
For grants rnade prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123{R],
compensalion expense is recognized ratably over the vesting
periods of ecchldronche of the stock options using o fair value
calculated as of|the date of grant based on the Black-Scholes
method with the, following weighted-overage assumptions for the




J
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year ended December 31, 2005: no dividends, 60% volchllty,
risk-free interest rate of 3.89%, ond expected life of 4.9 yeurs
The weighted-average fair value for grants made during the yecrs
ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 were $13.38 per share and
$23.15 per share, respedlvely !

For grants made subsequent to the adoption of SFAS|No.
123(R), compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period of the full award using a fair volue
calculated based on o binomial meodel. The binomial model
utilizes expected volatility, risk-free interest rate, dividend yle'.ds,
as well as early exercise multiples and post-vesting exit rates to
determine an expected life of the option. The weighted-average
assumptions for the year ended December 31, 2006 were os
follows: no dividends, 45% expected volatility, risk- free interest rcte
of 4.74%, and an expected life of 5.3 years. The expected volchllty
was estimaoted by using the implied volatility derived froml the
Company’s publicly traded stock options. The weighted- -average
fair value for grants made during the yeor ended December 3,
2006 was $20.47 per share.

Stock opfion activity during the year ended December|3l
2006 is as follows: |
|
i

Weighted-

Weighted-  average .
average remoining  Aggregote

Number exercise  contractual life  intrinsic

of options price {years) value!

Qutstanding as of '
Decernber 31, 2005 5318 S5 870 — —
Granted m 449 — -

Beerdsed (1,33) 443 - —

Forfeited (85) 3770 — — '1
Outstonding s of |
December 31, 2006 4731 S 1535 6.49 § 105,375
Erercisoble os of |
December 31, 2006 3471 S 412 579 $ 102,025

' |

The total intrinsic value of all options exercised during’ the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were $4, 328
$142,945 and $51,934, respectively. ‘ i

Restricted Stock Units *
The Company also grants restricted stock units (RSUs) to cericnn
directors and employees under the Company’s 2001 Amended
Plan. The RSUs are securities that require the Company 1o dellver
one share of cornmon stock to the holder for each vested unn‘
The RSUs vest 25% per year over a four-year period. For grunts
made prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), compensohon
expense is recognized ratably over the vesting perieds of each
tranche of the restricted stock units using o fair value equal to the
foir market value of the Company’s common stock on the dofe of
grant. For grants made subsequeni to the adoption of SFAS No
123(R}, compensation expense is recognized on a straight- line
basis over the vesting period of the full aword using a fair value
equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock
on the date of grant. The weighted-average fair volue of gr::nts
made during 2004, 2005 and 2006 were $22.19, $42.77 und
$44.00, respectively.

In addition, the Company also granted performance- bosed
RSUs to certain employees for the year ended December, 31,
2006. The number of these RSUs that will be earned is dependenf
upon meeting revenue and net income goals for fiscal year 2006
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The fair value of each RSU is based on the fair market value of
the Compuany’s stock on the date of grant. The total expense
is determined each period during 2006 based on the expected
number of RSUs that will be earned, which is 88 as of December
31, 2006.

Restricted stock unit activity during the year ended December
31, 2006 is as follows:

Weighted-overage

Number grant dote

of units fair value
Quistanding gs of December 31, 2005 n? § 22
Granfed 186 400
Vested (226) 2534
Forfeited (17} 36.64
QOutstonding os of December 31, 2006 655 S 31m

The total fair value of all resiricted stock units that vested
during the yeors ended December 31, 2004, 2005 end 2006
were 50, $7,099 and $9,507, respectively.

Pre-Adoption Pro Forma Information

Prior to adopting SFAS No.123(R), the Company applied the
intrinsic value-based method of accounting prescribed by APB
Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,”
and related interprelations, including FASB interpretation
No. 44, "Accounting for Certain Tronsactions involving Stock
Compensation, an interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25, to
account for its fixed plon stock-based awards to employees.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and
eornings per share if the fair value based method had been
opplied for the years ended December 31, 2004 and December
31, 2005, respectively:

Yeor Ended -+ Yeor Ended
December 31,  December 31,
2004 2005
Information os reported:
Stock-bosed employee compansation expense
included in net income, net of fox 4,329 5911
Net income 54,066 170,830
Bosic eamings per share 0.62 1.90
Diluted eomings per share 0.59 1.81
Information calculoted os if fair value method
had applied to oll owards:
Stock-based employse compansation expense
determined under fair valve method; net of tax 733 11,468
Pro foema net income 51,064 165,273
Pro formo basic earnings per share 0.59 1.83
Pro farmo diluted earnings per share 0.55 1.75

(9)—Related Party Transactions

Philips and Affiliates

Immediately prior to the secondary public offering descrubed
in Note 7, Philips B.V.'s ownership was 33,101 shares of the
Company’s common stock, or approximately 37.7% of the total
outstanding.

As of December 31, 2003, Philips B.V. held warrants to
purchase 3,384 shares of the Company’s common stock. The per
share exercise price of the warrants was $0.14. The warrants were
gronted on various dates between 1997 and 2000 pursuant to the




loan agreement described below. The warrants were exercisable
through and would have expired on April 1, 2007, were subjec!
to adjustment for stock splits or dmdends and had certgin
antidilution pr0vusmns for below market issuances. The warranis
were exercised on Apnl 28, 2004 os described in Note 7.

1

Letter of Credit Guarantee

The Company obtoihed an irrevocable standby lefier of credit with
LaSalie Bank NLA. in conjunction with one of its facility leases. The
original face omount of $2,000 declined annually until November
30, 2007, which i5 the end of the facility lease. Koninklijke
Philips Electronics N.V. {“Philips N.V."} issued an unconditional
and irrevocable guarantee o the bank as the primary obligor,
in accordance with the Company’s obligations regarding this
facility lease. The Company issued a counter guarantee to Philips
N.V. in which it agreed to pay o fee of 1.5% per annum of the
original $2,000 face value amount of the stand-by letter of credit
os reduced from time to time in accordance with its terms. In
2003, the Company paid $60 related to the counter guarantee.
The letter of credit, the Philips N.Y. guarantee and the counter
guarantee were cancelled in 2004.

Cash on Deposit with Affiliate
The Company entered into a deposit agreement daled as of May
21, 2002 with Philips N.V,, the parent company of the Company’s
majority stockholder prior to the Company’s initial public offering,
which was subsequently assigned 1o the Company’s U.S. operating
subsidiary. The Company’s European operating subsidiary also
entered into a deposit ogreement with Philips N.V. dated as of
September 26, 2003. These deposit agreeménts were for the
purpose of optimizing the returns on temparary excess cash ond
earned inferest at o rate of U.S. LIBOR minus '/ % for o U.S. dollar
deposit and EURIBOR/EONIA minus '/, % for euro deposits.

The deposit agreements with Philips N.V. expired on Auvgust
11, 2004 uvpon completion of the Company's initial public
offering, at which time the Company invested cosh balances in
excess of shori-term operational needs in cash equivalents and
marketable securities.

During 2004, the Company received $256, respectively, in

interest income related to the deposit agreements.
|

Swap Agreement !

On April 22, 2003 the Company entered into a U.S. dollar/
euro currency swop agreement [the “Swap”) with Philips N.V,
which was subsequently assigned to an unaoffiliated third party
in the third quorter of 2004. The purpose of the Swap was to
minimize the exchange rate exposure between the U.S. dollar
and the euro on the expected repayment of an intercompany
obligation. The intercompany balonce wos poyable by one of
the Company’s European subsidiaries to the Company and one
of its U.S. subsidiaries, and was due in U.S. dollars. Through
December 31, 2002, this intercompany balance was considered
permanent in nature, as repayment was not expected to occur in
the foreseeable future. However, primarily as a result of improved
operating performance in the Company’s Europeon business,
management concluded that cash flows would be sufficient to
support repayment over the next several years. Accordingly,
effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted a plan for
repayment and the loan was no longer designated as permanent
in nature. The intercompany loan underlying the Swap was repaid
settled in the second quarter of 2006. The terms of the Swap are
described in Note 10.
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Other

The Company entered into transactions with affiliates of Philips
NV, under which the Company received software, software-
related consuhina services, tox consulting services, fleet services,
insurance serwces, and purchasing services. The Company did
not obtain any such services or incur any fees related thereto ofter
May 10, 2005. Tofol fees incurred for these services of $1,336,
$137 and 30 ore included in operoting costs and expenses for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

(10)—Foreign Currency Derivatives

On April 22, 2003 the Compony entered into o U.5. dollar/
euro currency swop ogreement (the “Swap”) with Philips N.V. to
minimize the exchange rate exposure between the U.S. dollar
and the euro on the expected repayment of an intercompany
obligation. The S\!wup was subsequently assigned te an unaffiliated
third party in ihe third quarter of 2004. Under the terms of the
Swap, the Compony s European subsidiary made payments to
the other party | to the Swap in euros in exchange for the U.S.
dollar equwuleni 'at a fixed exchange rate of $1.0947 U.S. dollar/
euro. The U.S. dollor proceeds obtained under the Swaop were
be utilized to moke poyments of principal on the intercompany
loan. The outstanding principal balance under the intercompany
loan was $187, ]36 ot April 22, 2003. The Swop had o maturity
dote of December 22, 2006 and provided for settlement on a
monthly basis |n|proporhon to the repayment of the intercompany

obligation; however, the $wap was setiled in the second quarter of
2006. As of December 31, 2006, the outstanding intercompany
obligation was $0 and the fair value of the Swap was a licbility
of $0.

The mfercompuny loan incurred interest at one-month U.S.
LIBOR. The Swop also provided that the European subsidiary
of the Componyiwos required o pay interest due in euros on a
monthly bosis to 1he other party to the Swap in exchange for U.S.
dollars at the one -month U.5. LIBOR rate.

The Swap was not designated for hedge accounting and
therefore changgs in the foir value of the Swap were recognized
in current penod earnings. Gains on the fair value of the Swap
of $16,155 ond $3,508 were recorded for the years ended
December 31, 2005 ond 2006, respedlvely The Company
recorded a loss of $11,676 and a gain of $2,128 as o result of
the remeasuremem of the outstanding intercompany obligation
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
The Company recorded foreign currency transaction losses of
$4,451 and $5,656 during the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2006, respechvely, resulting from foreign currency exchange
differences arising on the repayments of the intercompany
obligation.

(1 1)—Employee|Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors a Savings and Investment Flan (the Plan)
that qualifies us|u thrift plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code. AII of the Company’s U.5. employees who have
completed three months of service are eligible to parficipote in
the Plan. The Plon allows participants to contribute up to 20%
of eligible compensohon, subject to the maximum omount
allowable under Internal Revenue Service regulations. The Plan
permits, but does not require, additional matching contributions
by the Compony In addition, the Company has sponsored
savings ond investment plans in its European subsidiaries. The
Company contnbuted $2,347, $2,688 ond $3,909 to these
defined contrlbuhon employee benefit plans for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively.




(1 2)‘,—Enierprise-wide Disclosures

The :Company operates in one business segment and therefore
does not report operating income, identifiable assets and/or other
resources related to business segments. Revenues for geographic
data of Europe, North America and Korea are atiributed to
Europe Middle East, and Africa {“EMEA"}, Americas and {%sm
Pacific. Revenues for geographic data for Central and South
America are afiributed to Americas. Revenues for geographic
datd for countries outside of Europe, the Americas and Korec!are
attributed to EMEA, and are not material. i
The following summarizes net revenue on a geographic basis

for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 {in

thousands): I
l\ Years Ended December 31, ‘

2004 2005 2006

Net revenue: i
EMEA § 267541 314,208 360,05(:
Americas 125,317 172,769 216,150
Asia Paifi — 7,515 5413
Total net revenue 5 392858 496,512 581,619

' ) !
The foliowing summarizes long-lived assefs on a geographic
bosns as of December 31, 2005 and 2006 (in thousands}:

~

- ' December 31, :

. 2005 2006 |
Property ond equipment, net: |
. EMEA § 57 70|
Americas 14,394 19810 |
Asia Pacific 701 575 :
Total property and equipment, net § 20824 27,462 |
Capitalized software development casts, net: J
Europe s — 1454 |

. NnrthAmencn 25,761 17,350 J
Asm Pacific — —.
Totul copitolized software development costs, net & 25,741 18,844 J

(1 3);Concen1rciions of Risk

For the year ended December 31, 2006, one customer accounted
for 12% of total revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2005,
one ‘customer accounted for 13% of total revenue. No other
customer accounted for 10% or more of total revenue for ]1he
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006. For the year ended
December 31, 2004, two customers accounted for 16% and ]0%,
respectively, of total revenue. l

(14)—Lease Obligations 1

The Company leases " its facilities, cutemobiles, and cer;mn
equipment under operating leases expiring through 2022
Monthly payments under certain facility leases are subject to flxed
increases. For accounting purposes, rent expense is based on a
straight-line amortization of the total payments required over ‘the
lease term. The leases require the Company 1o pay property Tc;ces,
msurance, maintenance, and repair costs. J

l
|
|
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The Company’s aggregate future minimum lease obligations
as of December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Year Ending December 31: ,

2007 § 15557
2008 11,985
2009 9,964
2010 8,042
20m 5,503
Thereafrer 43331
‘ S 94,382

Total rent expense under operating leases for facilifies and
equipment was $10,795, $11,449 and $13,589 for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

(15)—Business Combinafions

On luly 8, 2005, the Company acquired Piclure Map International
Co., Ud., a South Korean digital map company (“PMI”), through
its wholly owned subsidiory, NAVTEQ B.V., pursuant to a Stock
Purchose Agreement {the “Agreement”} dated the same date
by and omong NAVTEQ B.V, the Company, PMI and all of
the shareholders of PMI (the “PMI Shareholders”). Under the
Agreement, NAVTEQ! B.V, acquired all of the outstanding shares
of PMI for an aggregate purchase price of $28,500 (the “Purchase
Price”), subject to post-closing adjustments based on working
capifal and net indebtedness. Each of the PMI Shareholders
received the shareholder’s proportionate share of thirty percent
of the Purchase Price in cash. The PMI Shareholders also received
cash through a payment agent in Korea for the remaining seventy
percent of the Purchase Price, but the PMI Shareholders were then
required to use this cash to purchase an aggregate of 545 shares
of the Company’s common stock {the “NVT Stock”}. The number
of shares of the Company’s common stock issued was based on
a per share price of $36.60, the overage price of the common
stock as quated on the New York Stock Exchange for the twenty
consecutive frading days immediately prior to the closing date.

The Agreement contained customary representations,
warranties and related indemnification provisions. In addition, to
secure the indemnification obligations of the PMI Shareholders,
fifteen percent of the Purchase Price was deposited in escrow and
$500 of the Purchase Price wos deferred for payment until the
second anniversary of the Closing Date. On August 18, 2005,
the Company filed a registration statement on Form 5$-3 with the
SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, to register
for resale the shares of NVT Stock held by the PMI Shareholders.
The registration statement was declared effective on September
7, 2005,

In addition to the aforementioned consideration, the Company
poid $598 in direct costs fo acquire the shares of PMI to bring the
total purchase price to $29,125. As part of the purchase price
ollocation, the Company recorded $35,129 in assets and $6,004
in liabilities. Included in the total assets were the following
infangible assets:

Estimated
Intangible Asset Value Useful Life
Dotabase : S 8000 10 years
Customer relationships 5,600 7 years
Saftware 4000 3 years
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The acquired intangible ossets are being amortized on a
straight-line bosis over their estimated useful lives. In addition,
the Company recorded $12,156 in goodwill as of the acquisition
date. The goodwill is not tax-deductible. During the fourth
quarter of 2005, theé Company decreased goodwill by $872 due
to the reallocation of the purchase price. Pro forma results of the
Company, assuming the acquisition occurred at the beginning of
each period presented, would not be materially different from the
results presented.

On December 15, 2006, the Compony acquired The Map
Network (TMN}, through its wholly owned subsidiary, NAVTEQ
Holdings B.V. to increase its porffolio of localized mop content and
ability to efficiently map destinotions and events. TMN produces
detailed, accurate maps, in both print and online form, for a
number of leading convention centers, stadiums, ond hotels. Map
content includes detailed building layouts (interior and exterior),
robust event listings and locally relevant community and business
points of interest and information. The results of operations for
TMN for the 16 days ended December 31, 2006 are included in
the statements of operations.

Pursuant to the merger ogreement, each TMN stockholder
and holder of TMN convertible securiies received his, her
or its ollocable portion of the total consideration, subject to
certain purchase price adjustments. In addition, to secure
the indemnification” obligations, including any purchase price
adjustments, $7,500 of the merger considerolion was deposited
in escrow; any amount remaining in escrow at the end of 24
months will be released to the participating stockholders to
the extent not subject to pending indemnification claims by the
Company and its reloted parties.

The purchase price for TMN was $36,854. In addition to
the aforementioned consideration, the Company paid $308 in
direct costs to purchase TMN to bring the total purchase price to
$37,162. As part of the purchase price ollocation, the Company
recorded $41,704 in assets and $4,542 in liabilities. Included in
the total assets were. the following intangible assets:

Estimated
Intangible Asset | Volue Useful Life
Botabase 5 672 10 years
Advertising relofionship 2,863 7 years
Customer relationships { 2412 10 years
Custamer backlog i 166 1 yeor
Software | 1,01 5 years

The acquired im'cngible assets will be amortized on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The purchase price
allocation resulted in an adjustment to deferred tox liabilities of
$2,746. In addition, the Company recorded $30,369 in goodwill
as of the acquisition date. The goodwill is not tax-deductible.
Pro forma results of the Company, assuming the acquisition
occurred ot the beginning of each period presented, would not
be materially different from the results presented. Additionally, we
have not finalized tHe purchase accounting for this transaction,

In January 2006, the Company acquired o digital map
business from gedos Mexico, S.A. de C.V. for $5,044, including the
direct costs of the acquisition. In connection with the acquisition,
the Company recorded purchase price allocation adjustments of
$267 during 2006. Included in the total assets of this business
were the following intangible assets:
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Estimated
Intangible Asset Value Usefu! Life
Datobase } 5 15 10 years
Software 86 3 years
Customer relotionships H 5 years

(1 tEt)—Inﬂ:\rlgible| |Assefs

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of
intangible assets|subject to amortization as of December 31,

2005 are:
! Gross Accumulated Net
! Assets  Amortization  Assefs
Dotzbass ' S 8338 an 790
Customer relationships | 5837 (417 5,420
Software | 4,169 (695) 3474
Total i § 1834 (1,529) 16,815

I
The gross corrymg amount and accumulated amortization
of intangible assets subject to amortization as of December 31,

2006 are: :
! Gross Accomuloted Net
l Assets Amortization Assets
Database l $ 1514 (1573) 9,941
Customer relotionships 10,214 (1,400 8814
Software f 5643 {2310) 3,333
Service contract 1,969 {33) 1,936
Customer backlog l 164 {7 159
Advertising relationship ! 2,863 {1 2,852
Tota) I S 32369 (5.334) 27,035

During 20[)H the Company recorded an asset of $1,969

reloted to a servuce contract in an exchange transaction.
Additionally, in 2006 the Company recorded on asset of
$1,364 related to customer relationships in a separate exchange
transaction.

The eshmcﬂed omortization expense for each of the next five
years is 0s follovs‘rls

2007 § 5457
2008 4,563
2009 3,761
1010 3N
mn 3,266

Goodwill balances and the changes therein are as follows:

Tata!
Balance os of December 31, 2005 S 1,778
Acquisifions 32,776
Purchase price adjustments 157
Foreign cwrrency change 1,068
Balance as of December 31 2006 S 45719

|
|
;
|
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(17)—Litigation '

On April 22, 2005, Tele Atlas N.V. and Tele Atlas North Amerlco
("Tele Atlas”) filed & complaint against the Company in the Unuted
States District Court for the Northern District of Californio. (The
comploint alleges that the Company violated Sections 1 and 2
of the Sherman Ad, Section 3 of the Clayton Act, ond Sedlons
16720, 16727 and 17200 of the Caolifornia Business land
Professions Code, and that the Company intentionally interfered
with Tele Atlas’s contractual relafions and prospective economic
advantage with third parties, by allegedly excluding Tele Atlas
from the market for digital map data for use in navigation
system applications in the United States through exclusionary
and. predatory practices. On August 16, 2005, Tele Atlas filed
an amended complaint based on these same causes of achon
Specifically, in its amended complaint, Tele Atlas olleges | 'that
the Company controls a predominant share of variously defined
markets for digital map data and has entered into excldsive
contracts with digital map dato customers for the purpos{a of
acquiring or maintaining an illegal monopoly in these alleged
markets. Tele Allas also contends that these allegedly exclusnve
contracts have interfered with Tele Atlas’ current and prospedlve
business relationships and amount to unfair compelition under
California state law. In addition, Tele Atlos alleges that|the
Company, through its license under U.S. Patent No. 5,161,886,
controls @ predominant share of the alleged relevant technology
market consisting of methods for displaying portions ojf a
topographic map from an apparent perspective view outside and
above a vehicle in the United States, ond allegedly have entered
info patent licenses and/or other arrangements in a manner that
violates the aforescid laws. On November 2, 2005, the Court
dlsmlssed some, but not all, of Tele Atlas’ claims for failure to
state valid causes of action. On November 22, 2005, Tele Atlas
filed o second amended complaint based on the same causes of
actions and essentially the same cliegations as in its first amended
complaint and the Company filed an onswer denying Tele A:ﬂos'
claims. On February 19, 2007, Tele Atlas filed a Motion for Leave
to Amend and Supplement Second Amended Complaint, seeking
to file a third amended complaint based on the same couses
of action and allegations s in its second amended complaint.
Tele Atlos’ proposed third amended complaint adds allegations
regarding an additional defined market for digital map doic:
and regarding the Company’s control, through the Compuny 5
U.S. Patent No. 6,735,515, of o technology market con5|s‘hn9
of methods and systems designed to continuously provide driver
assistance systems with updated data about paths along roads
onto which a motor vehicle can travel from its current position,
and use of such control to enter into patent licenses and/or other
agreements in a manner that violates Federal and stote antitrust
laws. Tele Atlas seeks preliminary and permanent injunctive rellief,

vnspecified monetary, exemplary and treble damages, and costs .

and attorneys’ fees of suit. Based on a review of the second and
draft third amended complaint, the Company believes that|the
allegations are without merit. The Company intends to toke all
necessary steps to vigorously defend itself against this action;
however, because this matter is in a very early stage, the Company
cannet predict its cutcome or potential effect, if any, onlthe
Company’s business, financial position or results of operations. A
negative outcome could adversely affect the Company’s business,
results of operations and financial condition. Even if the Company
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prevails in this matter, the Company may incur significant
costs in connection with its defense, experience a diversion of
management time and aftention, realize o negative impact on the
its repwtation with its customers and face similor governmental
and private actions based on these allegations.

We are subject to various other legal proceedings and claims
arising in the ordinary course of our business. We do not believe
that any of these other legal proceedings or claims will materially
affect our business, financial position or results of operations.

Nn 8]~—Guara ntees

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation (FIN} 45,
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebledness of
Others.” FIN 45 requires that the Company recognize the fair
value for guarantee and indemnification arrangements issue or
modified by the Company after December 22, 2002, if these
arrangements are within the scope of the Inferpretation. In
addition, the Company must continue to monitor the conditions
thot are subject to the guaorantees ond indemnifications, as
required under previously existing GAAR in order to identify if
a loss has occurred. If the Company determines it is probable
that a loss has occurred then any such estimable loss would be
recognized under those guarantees and indemnifications. Under
its standard database licensing agreements, the Company agrees
to indemnify, defend and hold harmless its licensees from and
against certain losses, damoges and costs arising from claims
alleging the licensees’ use of Company data infringes copyrights,
and in some cases, other intellectual property rights, of o third
party. Historically, the Company has not been required to pay
any amounts in connection with claims asserted under these
provisions, and, accordingly, the Company hcs not recérded o
liability relating to such provisions.

(19)—Quarterly Results {unaudited)

The following table presents the Company's selected unaudited
quarterly results:

First Second Third Fourth
Quorter  Quorter  Quarter  Quorter
For the yeor ended Decernber 31, 2005
Net revenue S 104697 122832 123005 145978
Operating income 1,83 442 30423 41,560
Net income 16,785 25264 101,115 27,666
Bosic earnings pes shore
of comman stock* 019 018 1 0.30
Diluted egmings per
share of comman stack™ 0.18 027 107 029
Foi the yegr ended December 31, 2006
Net revenue S 122325 135945 142458 180,491
Operating income 20,723 33,126 37,044 42,803
Net income 16,184 23,764 27,079 42,943
Basic earnings per shore
of comman stock” 0.18 0.26 0.29 0.46
Diluted gammings per
shore of common stock® 017 0.25 0.28 045

* The earnings per share computation for the yeor is @ seporate, annual
calculation. Accordingly, the sum of the quorterly earnings per share amounts
does not necessarily equal the earnings per share for the yeor.
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Stockholder Return Performance Presentation :

The graph that follows shall not be deemedto be incorporated by reference into any filing made by us under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended ("Securities Act”) or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended {"Exchange Act”}, notwithstanding any general state-
ment contained in any such filing incorporating this proxy statement by reference, except to the extent we incorporate such groph by
specific reference. The following Stockholder Return Performonce Graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return of our com-
mon stock against the Russell 1000 Index and the Dow Jones U.S. Technology Index for the period from August 6, 2004, the date of our
initial public offering, to December 31, 2006. The cc>mpcnson assumes $100 was invested on August 6, 2004 in our common stock
and in each of the Indices and assumes reinvestment of dividends. The historical stock price performance of our common stock shown
in the performance graph below is not necessarily indicativelof future performance.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
Among NAVTEQ Corparation, the Russell 100G Index, ond the Dow Jones U.S. Tachnology tndex
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Stockholder Information

Corporate Headquarters
222 Merchondise Mart, Suite 900
Chicago, lllinois 60654 L.S.A.
312 894 7000 '

www.navteq.com

NAVTEQ Stock Information
NAVTEQ common stocl( is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “NVT.” NAVTEQ's filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC} can be found on our Web site of www.navteg.com

The following table sefs forth the high ond low sales prices per share of our commeon stock for eac”h guarter of 2005 and 2004:

Liart ] B 12006 100 4 0.8 (K
1st Quarter | 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter I 4th Quarter 1st Quurh;a‘r 2nd Quaorter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
High $ 48.57 $ 45.23 $ 51.00 $ 53.70 $51.59 $ 55.86 $ 45.00 . $37.25

Low $37.30 $34.30 $36.06 $ 38.40 $40.00 $37.25 $23.73 $25.14
Holders

As of February 1, 2007 our comman stock was held by 210 stockholders of record.

Dividends

Except for a special cosh dividend that was paid to cur common stockholders on June 18, 2004, we have never declared or paid any cash dividends
on aur common stock. We currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to finance the exponsmn of our business and do not expect to pay any
cash dividends in the foreseeuble future. In addition, neither we nor our subsidiaries may pay any Icush dividends with respect to any shares of any
class of our capital stock in accordance with our existing revolving credit agreement. This restnchon materially limits our ability to pay dividends on
our common stock. Payrnent of future cash dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors after taking into account various factors,
including our Fnuncuul condition, operating results, current and anticipated cash needs, and pfcns for expansion, and in accordance with the revolving
credit agreement. OUrioblhty to poy dividends oiso may be limited by financing or other agreements that we may enter into in the future.

Certifications )

Copies of the CEQ/CFO certifications required under Section 302 of the Sorbones Oxley Aci of 2002 have been filed as an exhibit to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004. We have submlﬂed last year’s Annual CEC Cer‘hflcuhon to
the New York Stock Exchange pursuant to Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE Listed Company Manual.

Availability of Annl.lul Report on Form 10-K

A copy of the Compony s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, mcludmg the financial siatements and the financial
statement schedules filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, is available without charge upon written request to Tom Fox, Director,
Investor Relations, NAVTEQ; 222 Merchandise Mart, Suite 900; Chicago, lllinois 60654; by calling 312 894 7500; or by accessing the Company's
Web site ot www.naveq.com under Investor Relafions.

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
NAVTEQ stockholders as of April 2, 2007 are invited to attend and vote ot our annual meeting, which will be held in Chicago, lllinois,
May 22, 2007, 2:00 ai.m. local time at the following venue:

Holiday Inn Mar Plaza

Wolf Point Ballroom, 151th Floor
350 West Mart Cenfer; Drive
Chicago, lllincis 60654 U.S.A.

The doors will open ot approximately 8:30 a.m. local time.

Transfer Agent

Computershare Investor Services LLC
250 Royal! Street

Canion, Massachusetts 02021 U.S.A.
866 619 0646

Independent Regisjtered Public Accounting Firm
KPMG LLP
Chicago, lllinois U.S.A.

NAVTEQ
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